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·1· · · · RENO, NEVADA; WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2022; 8:30 A.M.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·-o0o-
·2

·3

·4· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· We're here in the

·5· ·matter of the charges in the complaint against Dietrich

·6· ·Von Feldmann, M.D. Case Number 22-31575-1.· I'm Patricia

·7· ·Halstead.· I'm the Hearing Officer.· I'll be adjudicating

·8· ·this matter today.

·9· · · · · · · ·Dr. Von Feldmann is present, as is Ian J.

10· ·Cumings, on behalf of the IC, the Investigative Committee

11· ·of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, and this

12· ·matter is being recorded today via a court-certified

13· ·court reporter.

14· · · · · · · ·We're going to start with some preliminary

15· ·matters.· My understanding is that there were some

16· ·exhibits that were discussed prior to us commencing the

17· ·hearing.· The IC had supplied Exhibits 1 through 20,

18· ·which have all been stipulated to for admission.

19· · · · · · · ·Can you both confirm that is correct,

20· ·Mr. Cumings?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I confirm.

22· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Mr. Von Feldmann?

23· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I do.

24· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Thank you.· And
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·1· ·then I also wanted to note that Mr. Von Feldmann has

·2· ·asked that we all speak up so that he can hear us

·3· ·clearly, so I'll just ask Dr. Von Feldmann if there's any

·4· ·issue and you can't hear anybody including our witnesses

·5· ·in Las Vegas, please let us know and we'll try to

·6· ·remember to speak up.

·7· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Thank you.· Okay.

·9· ·With that, are there any other preliminary matters we

10· ·need to address?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Yes.· I just wanted to make a

12· ·record of some of the housekeeping matters and a brief

13· ·procedural history of the case up to this point.

14· · · · · · · ·As Dr. Von Feldmann is here, we won't be

15· ·discussing Exhibits 3 through 10, which were only being

16· ·admitted to show the extensive effort on the part of

17· ·Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners' staff to serve

18· ·and contact Dr. Von Feldmann at the outset of this

19· ·matter.· Originally, we had difficulty contacting Dr. Von

20· ·Feldmann and the hearing date for this matter has been

21· ·rescheduled to afford Dr. Von Feldmann the greatest

22· ·possible opportunity to obtain counsel and be prepared

23· ·for this hearing.· Dr. Von Feldmann did obtain counsel

24· ·but ultimately, the attorney had to withdraw due to
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·1· ·nonengagement on the part of Dr. Von Feldmann, and that

·2· ·was when the hearing was reset for today.

·3· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Mr. Von Feldmann,

·4· ·is there any of that you would like to comment on?

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Well, she withdrew because

·6· ·I didn't sign the contract.

·7· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Right.· And

·8· ·then --

·9· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· And I didn't sign the

10· ·contract because it's too expensive.

11· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.

12· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· So this meeting this

13· ·morning would have cost me already $1,000 in addition to

14· ·all of the meetings I might have had with her before

15· ·today.

16· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· And that's

17· ·okay.· But you understand that when you represent

18· ·yourself that you take on that responsibility.· And if

19· ·you're not able to meet the legal requirements of the

20· ·proceeding, you're still held accountable for those based

21· ·on your self-representation.

22· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yeah.

23· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· And you

24· ·just have to say yes.
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·1· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Because the court

·3· ·reporter has to take it down.· Thank you.· And I will

·4· ·note also that we didn't have your original address, and

·5· ·so you weren't getting noticed.· That has since been

·6· ·corrected and you have received notice of the proceedings

·7· ·to date; correct?

·8· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yes.

·9· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'm ready for opening

11· ·statements.

12· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Go ahead,

13· ·Mr. Cumings.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· This hearing is to present

15· ·evidence to determine if Dr. Von Feldmann committed

16· ·malpractice.· Dr. Von Feldmann is the Respondent in this

17· ·case as alleged in Count 1 on the complaint filed March

18· ·1, 2022.· The complaint contains a single count of

19· ·malpractice, which is a violation of NRS 630.301-4.· Dr.

20· ·Von Feldmann has been an active licensee of the Board

21· ·since August 17th, 2006.

22· · · · · · · ·Throughout this hearing, the evidence will

23· ·show that Dr. Von Feldmann performed a surveillance

24· ·colonoscopy on an 80-year-old patient, and following this

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 8
·1· ·procedure, Dr. Von Feldmann failed to recognize the colon

·2· ·perforation when the patient complained of extreme pain.

·3· ·Dr. Von Feldmann further failed when he did not order an

·4· ·immediate abdominal radiograph to exclude colon

·5· ·perforation when the patient complained of pain on the

·6· ·day of the colonoscopy.

·7· · · · · · · ·Lastly, the evidence will show that Dr. Von

·8· ·Feldmann failed to recognize that his CT scan performed

·9· ·in Mount Grant showing a large amount of free air in the

10· ·right upper quadrant of the patient likely indicated a

11· ·colon perforation and failed to interfere accordingly.

12· · · · · · · ·In sum, the testimony and evidence that will

13· ·be presented today will establish by a preponderance of

14· ·the evidence that Dr. Von Feldmann committed malpractice

15· ·by his failure to address and manage the patient who had

16· ·undergone an iatrogenic injury and respond accordingly.

17· ·This represents a failure to meet standard of care.

18· · · · · · · ·On behalf of the Investigative Committee, we

19· ·ask the Board to consider the record that will be

20· ·presented here and render the appropriate findings and

21· ·discipline.· Once again, thank you all for being here

22· ·today.· And thank you, Dr. Von Feldmann, for showing up.

23· ·Appreciate it.

24· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Mr. Von Feldmann,
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·1· ·would you like to give an opening statement?· It's not a

·2· ·chance to testify.· It's just a chance to say what the

·3· ·evidence will show that you intend to address.· You don't

·4· ·have to give one.· And if you choose not to give one,

·5· ·then Mr. Cumings will call his witnesses and you'll have

·6· ·an opportunity to cross-examine them.

·7· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· At this point, I would

·8· ·like to say that if I was confronted with the same

·9· ·situation, I would do exactly the same as I did and as I

10· ·would have done if they would have let me.

11· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Well, thank

12· ·you for that.

13· · · · · · · ·So with that, Mr. Cumings will call his first

14· ·witness.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· The first witness for the IC is

16· ·Dr. Shih.· Dr. Shih, please state your name and spell

17· ·your last name for the record.

18· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· David Shih:· S-H-I-H.

19· · · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· Sorry to interrupt.

20· ·Does he need to be sworn?

21· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· He does.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Oh, yes.· Dr. Shih, would you

23· ·raise your right hand.

24
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · ·DAVID SHIH, M.D.,

·2· · · · · · · ·having been first duly sworn, was

·3· · · · · · ·examined and testified as follows:

·4

·5· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Thank you, Dr.

·6· ·Shih.· You can go ahead and put your hand down.· I'll

·7· ·consider you sworn in.

·8

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXAMINATION

10· ·BY MR. CUMINGS:

11· · · · · Q· · Dr. Shih, could you state your name one more

12· ·time.

13· · · · · A· · David Shih.

14· · · · · Q· · Perfect.

15· · · · · A· · S-H-I-H.

16· · · · · Q· · All right.· Are you licensed as a medical

17· ·doctor in the State of Nevada?

18· · · · · A· · Yes.

19· · · · · Q· · For how long have you been a licensee?

20· · · · · A· · Since 2017.

21· · · · · Q· · Are you licensed anywhere else?

22· · · · · A· · California.

23· · · · · Q· · California?· Where did you go to medical

24· ·school at?
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·1· · · · · A· · Weill Medical College of Cornell University.

·2· · · · · Q· · Are you certified by the American Board of

·3· ·Medical Specialties?

·4· · · · · A· · Yes.

·5· · · · · Q· · What specialties are you certified in,

·6· ·Doctor?

·7· · · · · A· · Gastroenterology.

·8· · · · · Q· · What kind of medicine do you practice?

·9· · · · · A· · I practice gastroenterology.

10· · · · · Q· · And where do you practice medicine?

11· · · · · A· · Here in Las Vegas.

12· · · · · Q· · How long have you been practicing as a

13· ·gastroenterologist?

14· · · · · A· · Since 2009.

15· · · · · Q· · Would you please turn to Exhibit 18 that's

16· ·marked as your curriculum vitae.· Now, for the record,

17· ·this has already been admitted.· Can you state for the

18· ·record, Dr. Shih, what this exhibit is?

19· · · · · A· · This is my curriculum vitae.

20· · · · · Q· · Does this appear to be a true-and-correct

21· ·copy of your curriculum vitae?

22· · · · · A· · Yes, it is.

23· · · · · Q· · And do these documents accurately summarize

24· ·your experience and education?
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·1· · · · · A· · Yes, it is my experience and education.

·2· · · · · Q· · And you prepared this document?

·3· · · · · A· · Yes.

·4· · · · · Q· · And you provided this document to the Board?

·5· · · · · A· · Yes.

·6· · · · · Q· · Is there anything that you would like to add

·7· ·to this document or is this document complete?

·8· · · · · A· · This document is complete.

·9· · · · · Q· · I would like to go through a couple of things

10· ·on this document.· Could you turn to reference page 510.

11· · · · · A· · Yes, I'm there.

12· · · · · Q· · All right.· It says that you're a teacher.

13· ·Do you teach in gastroenterology or do you train other

14· ·physicians?

15· · · · · A· · I was an associate professor at both UCLA and

16· ·Cedars-Sinai from 2009 to 2017, so yes, I do train future

17· ·gastroenterologists.

18· · · · · Q· · Do you conduct any research or puplish any

19· ·papers?

20· · · · · A· · Yes, I conducted research and publish papers

21· ·up until now.

22· · · · · Q· · A rough estimate, how many papers do you

23· ·think that you've worked on or published or co-authored?

24· · · · · A· · Probably 200, give or take.
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·1· · · · · Q· · Okay.· Have you written any chapters for any

·2· ·medical textbooks?

·3· · · · · A· · Yes, I have.

·4· · · · · Q· · So you can sort of say that you've written a

·5· ·book on these sort of cases before.· Have you served as a

·6· ·peer reviewer?

·7· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Is that a

·8· ·question?

·9· · · · · Q· · (BY MR. CUMINGS:)· Yes.· Would you -- Strike

10· ·that question.· I'll move on.· Have you served as peer

11· ·reviewer for the Board before?

12· · · · · A· · This is my first one.

13· · · · · Q· · Have you testified in any civil cases before?

14· · · · · A· · Yes, I have.

15· · · · · Q· · Have you testified for the defense before?

16· · · · · A· · Yes, I have testified for the defense.

17· · · · · Q· · Are you familiar with Investigation Number

18· ·18-181 regarding Dr. Dietrich Von Feldmann?

19· · · · · A· · Yes, I'm familiar.

20· · · · · Q· · So based upon your training and experience,

21· ·do you feel that you're familiar with the standards of

22· ·care for which a medical practitioner should be held

23· ·regarding the facts of this case?

24· · · · · A· · I do.
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·1· · · · · Q· · So you have experience in the subject matter

·2· ·that you've been asked to review regarding the facts of

·3· ·this case.· Is that correct?

·4· · · · · A· · Yes.

·5· · · · · Q· · Were you provided with materials by the Board

·6· ·in your review of this matter?

·7· · · · · A· · Yes.

·8· · · · · Q· · Do you remember what was included in those

·9· ·materials?

10· · · · · A· · The medical documentation from Dr. Von

11· ·Feldmann, the ER visit, the transfer note to another

12· ·hospital, and the surgeon's operative note and the

13· ·pathology.

14· · · · · Q· · Were you asked at the time of the materials

15· ·were provided to review them and make an objective

16· ·determination whether, in your professional medical

17· ·opinion, there was any departure from the proper medical

18· ·standards of care regarding the care provided by Dr. Von

19· ·Feldmann?

20· · · · · A· · Yes.

21· · · · · Q· · Did you come to a determination?

22· · · · · A· · Yes.

23· · · · · Q· · And what was that?· What was your opinion?

24· · · · · A· · That Dr. Von Feldmann did not act upon
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·1· ·standard of care.

·2· · · · · Q· · Thank you, Dr. Shih.· I'm going to ask you

·3· ·some more specific questions regarding the facts of this

·4· ·case.· Can you turn to the Board's Exhibit 13 that's

·5· ·referenced number page 59.· Would you please quickly

·6· ·review this document and just look to me when you're

·7· ·done.

·8· · · · · A· · I'm finished.

·9· · · · · Q· · What does this document look like to you?

10· · · · · A· · This is a colonoscopy procedure report that

11· ·was performed by Dr. Von Feldmann.

12· · · · · Q· · Do you see a date on this colonoscopy report?

13· · · · · A· · The date is -- it's hard to make out, but I

14· ·believe it's June 20th, 2018.

15· · · · · Q· · That is correct, Dr. Shih.· What do the

16· ·records show is the reason that the patient was seeing

17· ·Dr. Von Feldmann on June 20th, 2018?

18· · · · · A· · It's for a colonoscopy.

19· · · · · Q· · And Dr. Von Feldmann performed a colonoscopy

20· ·in this case?

21· · · · · A· · Yes.

22· · · · · Q· · What were his findings?

23· · · · · A· · He found there were a cecal polyp, an

24· ·ascending colon polyp, and marked left-sided
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·1· ·diverticulosis.

·2· · · · · Q· · Did he remove any polyps?

·3· · · · · A· · Yes, he did.

·4· · · · · Q· · By what method did Dr. Von Feldmann remove

·5· ·these polyps?

·6· · · · · A· · He used a method called endoscopic mucosal

·7· ·resection.

·8· · · · · Q· · Can you explain for laymen how that procedure

·9· ·is done?

10· · · · · A· · It is to initially inject with a solution

11· ·called Eleview to raise the polyp.· Once the polyp is

12· ·raised, then a gastroenterologist would then use a snare

13· ·with electrocautery to remove the polyp by

14· ·electrocautery.

15· · · · · Q· · Is this what Dr. Von Feldmann referred to as

16· ·hot biopsy forceps?

17· · · · · A· · No, that is a separate thing that he did to

18· ·do touchup to, I suppose, destroy the remaining polyp

19· ·that he could not remove using the endoscopic mucosal

20· ·resection.

21· · · · · Q· · Is this commonly done?

22· · · · · A· · Some gastroenterologists do it, but I rarely

23· ·do this procedure.

24· · · · · Q· · Are there any risks associated with this
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·1· ·method of polyp removal?

·2· · · · · A· · There are reports that says using the hot

·3· ·biopsy forceps may have a higher risk of complication.

·4· · · · · Q· · What sort of complications are associated

·5· ·with the use of hot biopsy forceps?

·6· · · · · A· · One such would be perforation.

·7· · · · · Q· · Was Dr. Von Feldmann concerned with any of

·8· ·these risks?

·9· · · · · A· · I cannot tell from this documentation.

10· · · · · Q· · Could you please turn to Exhibit 13, pages 47

11· ·through 48.· And this includes page 47A.

12· · · · · A· · I'm there.

13· · · · · Q· · Could you please review this document and

14· ·look up to me when you're done.

15· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Can you repeat

16· ·which exhibit, please?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Exhibit 13, Bate pages 47

18· ·through 48, including 47A.· I apologize.

19· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· I was busy

20· ·sneezing and I didn't catch it.

21· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I'm finished reading.

22· · · · · Q· · (BY MR. CUMINGS:)· Would you turn to focus on

23· ·page 47A.

24· · · · · A· · I'm there.
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·1· · · · · Q· · Does Dr. Von Feldmann note any complications

·2· ·immediately following the procedure?

·3· · · · · A· · No, he says the polypectomy site appeared

·4· ·good.

·5· · · · · Q· · To refresh your recollection, could you look

·6· ·at the third paragraph down?· It begins with:· He or his

·7· ·wife.

·8· · · · · A· · Yes.

·9· · · · · Q· · Could you read that paragraph again.

10· · · · · A· · He or his wife called the hospital later in

11· ·the evening because of pain.· In the assumption that he

12· ·might have a post polypectomy coagulation necrosis

13· ·syndrome, I prescribed some narcotics.· My M.A. had a

14· ·telephone conversation with them later on which suggested

15· ·that the analgesics had helped.

16· · · · · Q· · Dr. Von Feldmann was contacted after the

17· ·patient was discharged on June 20th?

18· · · · · A· · Yes.

19· · · · · Q· · And what did he learn from that phone call,

20· ·according to that paragraph?

21· · · · · A· · That the patient had pain.

22· · · · · Q· · So based on your review up to this point,

23· ·what would you be most concerned about a patient that was

24· ·80 years old and calling after hours complaining of

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 19
·1· ·severe pain?

·2· · · · · A· · My differential diagnosis would be post

·3· ·polypectomy coagulation syndrome, perforation, and other

·4· ·diagnosis such as splenic laceration.

·5· · · · · Q· · What should be done in a situation where

·6· ·there are concerns about perforation of the bowel or post

·7· ·polypectomy necrosis or coagulation necrosis syndrome

·8· ·rather?

·9· · · · · A· · Abdominal imaging.

10· · · · · Q· · Abdominal imaging.· Turning back to what

11· ·happened, did Dr. Von Feldmann order any imaging?

12· · · · · A· · No.

13· · · · · Q· · What did he do?

14· · · · · A· · He prescribed analgesics.

15· · · · · Q· · So following the night of the 20th here, I'd

16· ·like to turn your attention briefly to another exhibit.

17· ·Could you please turn to Exhibit 19, pages 524 to 526.

18· · · · · A· · I'm there.

19· · · · · Q· · What does this document appear to be?

20· · · · · A· · This is a CT scan of the abdomen and pelvis

21· ·for patient (name.)

22· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Are we stating the

23· ·patient's name on the record?

24· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· No.· Dr. Shih, could you please
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·1· ·refrain from using the patient's name.· Just refer to him

·2· ·as Patient A, if you refer to him at all.

·3· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· And can you

·4· ·address that in the record?

·5· · · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.· I will.

·7· · · · · Q· · (BY MR. CUMINGS:)· Thank you very much.· Can

·8· ·you tell from this document what the date of the order

·9· ·was?

10· · · · · A· · The date of the CAT CT scan was June 21st,

11· ·2018.

12· · · · · Q· · So this is the following morning after

13· ·Dr. Von Feldmann performed a colonoscopy; correct?

14· · · · · A· · Correct.

15· · · · · Q· · Can you tell from this document who ordered

16· ·the CT scan?

17· · · · · A· · I believe it's -- Can I use a name?

18· · · · · Q· · Yes.

19· · · · · A· · Okay.· Dr. Ventura.

20· · · · · Q· · All right.· Dr. Ventura.· So Dr. Von Feldmann

21· ·was not the ordering physician for this CT, was he?

22· · · · · A· · No.

23· · · · · Q· · Can you summarize what the findings of the CT

24· ·are?
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·1· · · · · A· · The summary, it's listed under impression,

·2· ·which I'll read.

·3· · · · · · · ·Large amount of free air in the right upper

·4· ·quadrant.· Additionally, there are a few foci of gas in

·5· ·the porta hepatis.· Evaluation for portal venous gas is

·6· ·limited due to the lack of IV contrast, although not

·7· ·likely intravascular.· Mildly dilated transverse colon,

·8· ·measuring up to 6.3 centimeters.· No discrete transition

·9· ·point is noted.· Diverticulitis without evidence of acute

10· ·diverticulitis.· 13.8 centimeter indeterminate low

11· ·hypodense lesion, likely representing a cyst.· Comparison

12· ·with prior image would be helpful.

13· · · · · Q· · Can you explain what that means to a

14· ·layperson in regards to a large amount of free air in the

15· ·right upper quadrant?

16· · · · · A· · Large amount of free air in the abdomen or

17· ·the free air would not typically be seen unless there

18· ·were few instances.· One such instance would be a bowel

19· ·perforation which again, the clinical context after a

20· ·patient had a colonoscopy would be the highest on my

21· ·differential list.

22· · · · · Q· · Is there an increased risk associated with

23· ·bowel perforation in a patient that's 80 years old?

24· · · · · A· · Yes, there could be fecal leakage from the
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·1· ·bowel causing life-threatening sepsis.

·2· · · · · Q· · I would like to turn back to Exhibit 13, page

·3· ·47A.· It's where we're at previously.

·4· · · · · A· · Yes.

·5· · · · · Q· · Does Dr. Von Feldmann and his response to the

·6· ·Board mention the CT that we just reviewed, Exhibit 19?

·7· · · · · A· · Yes, he did review the CT on his reply.

·8· · · · · Q· · Does he make note of the large amount of free

·9· ·air?

10· · · · · A· · Yes, he did make a note.

11· · · · · Q· · What did Dr. Von Feldmann interpret this

12· ·large amount of free air to mean?

13· · · · · A· · He, in his word, free air under his diaphragm

14· ·and that he indeed had post polypectomy coagulation

15· ·necrosis syndrome which had allowed the air to escape

16· ·through the weakened wall.

17· · · · · Q· · Does this occur, in your experience, that

18· ·postpolypectomy coagulation necrosis can lead to free air

19· ·in the right upper quadrant?

20· · · · · A· · By definition, there is no free air in the

21· ·condition called post polypectomy coagulation syndrome.

22· · · · · Q· · So it would more likely indicate a bowel

23· ·perforation?

24· · · · · A· · That is the distinction between bowel
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·1· ·perforation and post polypectomy coagulation syndrome.

·2· ·They are similar except in bowel perforation, there's

·3· ·free air.· No free air in post polypectomy coagulation

·4· ·syndrome.

·5· · · · · Q· · So did Dr. Von Feldmann think there was colon

·6· ·perforation in this case?

·7· · · · · A· · He did not consider it on this documentation.

·8· · · · · Q· · What course of treatment would Dr. Von

·9· ·Feldmann have recommended according to his response to

10· ·the Board?

11· · · · · A· · Are you saying -- Are you talking about the

12· ·post polypectomy coagulation necrosis syndrome or --

13· · · · · Q· · Yes, sir.

14· · · · · A· · -- about --

15· · · · · Q· · I'm looking at -- to refresh your

16· ·recollection here, I'm looking at the last paragraph on

17· ·that page.

18· · · · · A· · Okay.

19· · · · · Q· · Go ahead and review.

20· · · · · A· · I see.

21· · · · · Q· · Go ahead and review that paragraph to

22· ·yourself and then look up again when you're done.

23· · · · · A· · I'm finished.

24· · · · · Q· · Thank you, Dr. Shih.· I'm going to restate
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·1· ·that question.· What course of treatment would Dr. Von

·2· ·Feldmann have recommended according to his response?

·3· · · · · A· · He says sticking a needle into his abdomen.

·4· · · · · Q· · Is that something that would release the free

·5· ·air?

·6· · · · · A· · Yes, but it's not done --

·7· · · · · Q· · Is that --

·8· · · · · A· · -- typically done.

·9· · · · · Q· · -- an appropriate comment to make to a

10· ·patient?

11· · · · · A· · I do not know the context, but it is not

12· ·appropriate.

13· · · · · Q· · He mentions a gastrografin enema.· What is

14· ·that?

15· · · · · A· · It's to use a water-soluble contrast dye

16· ·administered via rectally by the enema to evaluate the

17· ·colon.

18· · · · · Q· · And that would be done to and in conjunction

19· ·with imaging or would that be done --

20· · · · · A· · With imaging, yes, fluoroscopy imaging.

21· · · · · Q· · Would this adequately treat a patient with a

22· ·perforated colon at that stage?

23· · · · · A· · No.· If anything, it's contraindicated if

24· ·there's a bowel perforation because he could worsen the
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·1· ·perforation.

·2· · · · · Q· · So based on the CT alone at this point, you

·3· ·would diagnose a perforated colon?

·4· · · · · A· · Yes.

·5· · · · · Q· · So what should be done to treat a perforated

·6· ·colon?

·7· · · · · A· · Nothing by mouth, NPO, IV hydration,

·8· ·antibiotics and urgent surgical consultation.

·9· · · · · Q· · So is there a concern about patient outcome

10· ·in the case of bowel perforation without surgical

11· ·intervention?

12· · · · · A· · In rare instances, perhaps a patient can be

13· ·treated conservatively, but if there is no improvement

14· ·after 24 hours, a surgical consultation needs to be

15· ·obtained.· In this case, the patient had pain.· The CT

16· ·showed large amount of free air in the colon.· This is

17· ·not a minor case, and a surgical consultation needs to be

18· ·obtained urgently.

19· · · · · Q· · Did Dr. Von Feldmann initiate a transfer of

20· ·the patient?

21· · · · · A· · No.

22· · · · · Q· · Do you recall who initiated the transfer of

23· ·the patient?

24· · · · · A· · Dr. Ventura, the primary care provider.
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·1· · · · · Q· · And do you recall where the patient was

·2· ·transferred to?

·3· · · · · A· · I believe the hospital is called Renown

·4· ·Regional Hospital.

·5· · · · · Q· · So according to medical records you reviewed,

·6· ·did Dr. Von Feldmann order imaging?

·7· · · · · A· · No.

·8· · · · · Q· · Did Dr. Von Feldmann refer Patient A for a

·9· ·higher level of care?

10· · · · · A· · No.

11· · · · · Q· · Did Dr. Von Feldmann recognize that the colon

12· ·-- that the free air in the right upper quadrant would

13· ·likely be indicative of colon perforation?

14· · · · · A· · No.

15· · · · · Q· · I would like to next look at your records

16· ·from Renown and have you walk us through what was

17· ·discovered after Patient A was transferred.· Do you

18· ·recall how Patient A arrived from Mount Grant?

19· · · · · A· · I believe by air transport.

20· · · · · Q· · So Care Flight?

21· · · · · A· · Care Flight.

22· · · · · Q· · Would you turn to Exhibit 17, page 89.

23· · · · · A· · Yes.

24· · · · · Q· · Could you review this and look up when you're
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·1· ·done.

·2· · · · · A· · I'm finished.

·3· · · · · Q· · Thank you, Dr. Shih.· What does this document

·4· ·appear to be?

·5· · · · · A· · This documentation is an emergency provider's

·6· ·history and physical.

·7· · · · · Q· · And what did the ER provider note in this

·8· ·section?· Could you --

·9· · · · · A· · He noted --

10· · · · · Q· · I'm sorry.

11· · · · · A· · I'm sorry.· Please finish your question.

12· · · · · Q· · Specifically in regards to HPI.· What does

13· ·HPI mean?

14· · · · · A· · History of present illness.

15· · · · · Q· · And what did the provider note in that

16· ·section?

17· · · · · A· · The provider noted that the patient was

18· ·transferred from Mount Grant Hospital for perforated

19· ·viscus as documented by a CAT scan.· The patient had

20· ·pain, nausea but no vomiting.· The patient had no bowel

21· ·movement, and the pain is better after receiving

22· ·morphine.

23· · · · · Q· · So according to that, they had already

24· ·diagnosed a colon perforation at Mount Grant before they
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·1· ·transferred?

·2· · · · · A· · They highly suspected.

·3· · · · · Q· · So as a gastroenterologist, seeing something

·4· ·like that should jump out to you that colon perforation

·5· ·should be a concern?

·6· · · · · A· · It would be the highest on my differential

·7· ·diagnosis.

·8· · · · · Q· · Let's turn a few pages forward.· Can you turn

·9· ·to page 132 through 133.· And just as before, please

10· ·review these documents and let know when you're done.

11· ·Thank you, Doctor.

12· · · · · A· · I'm finished.

13· · · · · Q· · Thank you, Dr. Shih.· What does this record

14· ·appear to be?

15· · · · · A· · This is a postoperative report.

16· · · · · Q· · Can you tell when the date of service was on

17· ·this report?

18· · · · · A· · June 21, 2018.

19· · · · · Q· · So that's the day following the colonoscopy;

20· ·correct?

21· · · · · A· · Yes.

22· · · · · Q· · Who was the author of this document?

23· · · · · A· · Dr. Robert Nachtsheim.· I'm sorry if I

24· ·pronounce the name incorrectly.
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·1· · · · · Q· · I think I would have done just as well as you

·2· ·did on that.· Is he a surgeon?

·3· · · · · A· · Yes, he's a surgeon.

·4· · · · · Q· · In examining page 132, what was his

·5· ·indication for a surgery for the patient?

·6· · · · · A· · Iatrogenic perforation of the colon.

·7· · · · · Q· · Iatrogenic.· What does that mean?

·8· · · · · A· · Iatrogenic means complication that is done in

·9· ·a medical setting by either a medical professional or a

10· ·medical facility.

11· · · · · Q· · And that was Dr. Nachtsheim's preoperative

12· ·diagnosis?

13· · · · · A· · Yes.

14· · · · · Q· · Was he the physician who operated on the

15· ·patient?

16· · · · · A· · Yes.

17· · · · · Q· · Can you tell from this document what

18· ·procedures he performed?

19· · · · · A· · He performed an exploration laparotomy, a

20· ·right hemicolectomy and a partial omentectomy.

21· · · · · Q· · Can you explain for a layperson what this

22· ·involves?· What are these procedures?

23· · · · · A· · He cut open a patient's abdomen, explored it

24· ·to see what needs to be done.· He determined that the
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·1· ·right colon needed to be removed and part of the omentum

·2· ·needed to be removed due to perforation.

·3· · · · · Q· · So would you characterize these operations as

·4· ·part diagnostic and part to treat the patient?

·5· · · · · A· · Yes, both diagnostic and therapeutic.

·6· · · · · Q· · Looking at the same page, that's page 132,

·7· ·what was Dr. Nachtsheim's findings?

·8· · · · · A· · So the surgeon, when he did his laparotomy,

·9· ·saw that the right colon was quite distended with a

10· ·splitting of the serosa.· And on the previous page 131,

11· ·he noted that the splitting of the serosa was nine

12· ·centimeter.

13· · · · · · · ·There were no contamination with the feces,

14· ·but he did note that the colon, the right colon, did not

15· ·appear to have a survivable insult due to massive

16· ·distension and extensive air within the soft tissues

17· ·surrounding the colon.· Due to this, due to what he

18· ·observed, he made the clinical decision to remove the

19· ·right colon.

20· · · · · Q· · So it's the surgeon's opinion then -- would

21· ·you characterize the surgeon's opinion that had Patient A

22· ·not been taken into surgery, he would not have survived?

23· · · · · A· · It's hard to say for a hundred percent, but

24· ·this is what everyone would have done because of
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·1· ·consequence would be dire including death.· Yes, in my

·2· ·opinion, I believe the patient would not have survived if

·3· ·the surgeon did not take him for a surgery.

·4· · · · · Q· · So he mentioned a splitting of the serosa.

·5· ·What is a splitting of the serosa exactly?

·6· · · · · A· · It's a perforation.· It's a tear.

·7· · · · · Q· · And how long did he note that tear was again?

·8· · · · · A· · On page 131, he noted it was nine centimeter.

·9· · · · · Q· · I happen to have a ruler here with me just

10· ·for a little bit of demonstrative effect here.· Nine

11· ·centimeters is about right here.· Would you characterize

12· ·that to be about nearly four inches?· I don't know if you

13· ·can see that.

14· · · · · A· · More specifically, 3.5 something inches.

15· · · · · Q· · So about nearly the size of a pen?

16· · · · · A· · Yes.

17· · · · · Q· · And you would say this is a very large tear?

18· · · · · A· · It is large.

19· · · · · Q· · In your professional medical opinion after

20· ·reviewing all of the facts in this case, the medical

21· ·records and utilizing your own experience, what should

22· ·Dr. Von Feldmann have done after the patient complained

23· ·of severe pain following colonoscopy?

24· · · · · A· · Ask the patient to go to either an urgent
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·1· ·care or an emergency room.· When the patient has ten out

·2· ·of ten pain, you get an urgent imaging to make sure

·3· ·there's no bowel perforation.

·4· · · · · Q· · Would you opine that Dr. Von Feldmann

·5· ·committed malpractice in this case?

·6· · · · · A· · He did not comply with standard of care, so

·7· ·he committed malpractice.

·8· · · · · Q· · Could there be any other reason for such a

·9· ·large volume of air in the right upper quadrant of

10· ·Patient A which is evident from the radiology report and

11· ·the findings from Renown that we've previously discussed?

12· · · · · A· · There are other medical reasons, but in this

13· ·clinical setting, the reason is bowel perforation.

14· · · · · Q· · Does the failure to recognize the free air in

15· ·the patient's abdominal cavity contribute to your finding

16· ·of malpractice?

17· · · · · A· · Yes.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Thank you.· I have no further

19· ·questions at this time.

20· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Dr. Von Feldmann,

21· ·did you have any questions that you would like to ask Dr.

22· ·Shih about the testimony that he's provided?

23· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Sure.

24
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · EXAMINATION

·2· ·BY DR. VON FELDMANN:

·3· · · · · Q· · So basic question is:· As far as your

·4· ·education is concerned, it says in your curriculum

·5· ·vitae --

·6· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· And just for the

·7· ·record, we have to say what exhibit that is, so I believe

·8· ·that's Exhibit 18.

·9· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· That is, I guess 18.

10· ·Eighteen.· It says internal medicine internship July 2003

11· ·through June 2004.· Is that correct?

12· · · · · A· · Yes.

13· · · · · Q· · And then it says underneath internal medicine

14· ·residency:· July 2004 through June 2005?

15· · · · · A· · That is correct.

16· · · · · Q· · Okay.· Is that all you did as far as internal

17· ·medicine residency is concerned?

18· · · · · A· · Yes.

19· · · · · Q· · Wasn't the rule that you had to do three

20· ·years instead of just two to be able to be eligible for

21· ·internal medicine more certification?

22· · · · · A· · That is not exactly correct.· For exceptional

23· ·residents, you can do what's called a short track meaning

24· ·that if you scored 99 percent on your medical board as
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·1· ·well as complete all of the required core curriculum, you

·2· ·could do a short track.· It is stated under ABIM.

·3· ·Therefore, I chose to do a short track because I have

·4· ·scored 99 percent on all of my examinations as well as

·5· ·completed my residency training, and as an applicant for

·6· ·GI fellowship, I was the number-one applicant during that

·7· ·year, and I got a pick of any gastroenterology fellowship

·8· ·program to go to.

·9· · · · · Q· · That was different when I went through

10· ·residency in the '70s.· I had two and a half years of

11· ·residency plus my fellowship in GI, and they did not

12· ·allow me to take the internal medicine boards.

13· · · · · A· · You would have to be picked by a program

14· ·director to be selected to the short track program.

15· · · · · Q· · They didn't offer anything to me, so okay.

16· ·So how many colonoscopies have you performed in your

17· ·career so far?

18· · · · · A· · Approximately 20,000.

19· · · · · Q· · And how many of those were performed by

20· ·residents and fellows under your supervision?

21· · · · · A· · Approximately 8,000.

22· · · · · Q· · So you would say that you performed 12,000

23· ·yourself?

24· · · · · A· · Yes, conservatively.
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·1· · · · · Q· · How many perforations have you had during

·2· ·your 8,000 colonoscopies?

·3· · · · · A· · 8,000 was done approximately with a fellow.

·4· ·12,000 was approximately done by myself personally.  I

·5· ·have one perforation.

·6· · · · · Q· · Do you perform EMRs yourself?

·7· · · · · A· · Yes.· Yes.

·8· · · · · Q· · How often did you encounter postcoagulation

·9· ·necrosis syndromes?

10· · · · · A· · Very rarely.

11· · · · · Q· · How many would you say?

12· · · · · A· · I'd probably count on my single digit, maybe

13· ·five.

14· · · · · Q· · What would you have done with this cecal

15· ·polyp?

16· · · · · A· · It's a one-centimeter polyp, so I would have

17· ·done as you have done which is to do an EMR to try to

18· ·remove this polyp.· If I cannot remove this polyp

19· ·completely, I would not have done a hot biopsy touchup.

20· · · · · Q· · What do you think the pain the patient

21· ·complains of was due to?

22· · · · · A· · The differential diagnosis is perforation

23· ·versus post polypectomy coagulation syndrome.

24· · · · · Q· · And how much would the air in the right upper
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·1· ·quadrant have contributed to his pain?

·2· · · · · A· · The air in the right upper quadrant indicates

·3· ·there's a perforation.· And in this perforation, that

·4· ·caused the pain.

·5· · · · · Q· · The perforation itself would have caused

·6· ·pain?

·7· · · · · A· · Perforation itself as well as the

·8· ·inflammation due to the electrocautery burn.

·9· · · · · Q· · Can you imagine that the patient would have

10· ·had much less pain after removal of the air from the

11· ·right upper quadrant, the pain radiating to the right

12· ·shoulder?

13· · · · · A· · The pain that radiates -- the pain that's in

14· ·the abdomen that radiated to the right shoulder is

15· ·indicative of a bowel perforation, and surgical

16· ·consultation is the right thing to do.

17· · · · · Q· · Have you ever ordered a gastrografin enema

18· ·for any of your --

19· · · · · A· · I have.

20· · · · · Q· · And what was the indication for that?

21· · · · · A· · Gastrografin enema can be used for several

22· ·indications.· One such indication can be used as a

23· ·screening, colon cancer screening modality.

24· · · · · Q· · You ordered that for bleeding, you say?
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·1· · · · · A· · No, that's not what I said.· I do not order

·2· ·gastrografin enema for bleeding.

·3· · · · · Q· · So I didn't understand you.· So what was the

·4· ·indication for the gastrografin enema?

·5· · · · · A· · One of the indications can be for colon

·6· ·cancer screening.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· He said one indication can be

·8· ·for colon cancer screening.

·9· · · · · · · ·Is that appropriate?

10· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· That's fine.

11· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· How many times did

12· ·you refer one of your patients to surgery for free air in

13· ·the abdomen?

14· · · · · A· · One.· The one time that I had a perforation.

15· · · · · Q· · And you did not get a gastrografin enema on

16· ·that particular patient before you sent him to the

17· ·surgeon?

18· · · · · A· · Yes, because ordering a gastrografin enema in

19· ·the setting of free air and possible perforation is a

20· ·contraindication.

21· · · · · Q· · Is it contra?

22· · · · · A· · Meaning we're not supposed to do it.

23· · · · · Q· · He said it's a contraindication?

24· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Contraindication meaning we're
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·1· ·not supposed to do it, is what he said.

·2· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· Uh-huh.· Yeah.· Okay.

·3· ·So what's your specialty in gastroenterology?

·4· · · · · A· · Yes, I'm Board certified in gastroenterology.

·5· · · · · Q· · What did he say?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· He said he's Board certified in

·7· ·gastroenterology.

·8· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yes, but don't you have

·9· ·some subspecialty interest in the field of

10· ·gastroenterology?

11· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I'm interested in colon cancer

12· ·screening.· I'm interested in immunology of the

13· ·gastrointestinal tract, I'm interested in inflammatory

14· ·conditions of the gastroenterology tract as well as many

15· ·other interests.

16· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Okay.· That's all I have.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· May I redirect?

18· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· You may.

19

20· · · · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION

21· ·BY MR. CUMINGS:

22· · · · · Q· · Thank you.· Dr. Shih, I'm going to ask you a

23· ·few questions related to what Dr. Von Feldmann asked you.

24· ·He asked you how many times have you had postcoagulation
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·1· ·necrosis syndrome.· How many times was that?

·2· · · · · A· · I estimate five.

·3· · · · · Q· · And you've done approximately 12,000

·4· ·conservatively, as you put it, 12,000 solo colonoscopies?

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Eight.

·6· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Just to be clear,

·8· ·if you don't agree, Dr. Von Feldmann, if you don't agree

·9· ·with something he says, then you say "objection" so we

10· ·know so that the witness doesn't answer.· And then you

11· ·can state on the record why you disagree with him and

12· ·then I can rule on that.

13· · · · · · · ·In this case, you objected because you

14· ·disagreed with the representation that he did 12,000

15· ·solo, which was incorporated in his question.· And your

16· ·position was that he testified that he did 8,000 solo.

17· ·And my ruling on that would be that the testimony has

18· ·been given and that it's recorded.· I will note your

19· ·objection and refer to the record as to who was correct

20· ·on that when I review this matter for proceeding.

21· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· So I object, and I

22· ·understood that you did 8,000 yourself and the rest were

23· ·done by residents and fellowships under your supervision.

24· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· And just for the
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·1· ·record, I recall it being 12- but, Dr. Shih, could you

·2· ·just clarify for the record for Mr. Von Feldmann's

·3· ·benefit in relation to his objection?

·4· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I did 8,000 with fellows and

·5· ·12,000 myself.

·6· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· So I'm sorry.

·7· · · · · Q· · (BY MR. CUMINGS:)· So that's 20,000 total?

·8· · · · · A· · Approximately.

·9· · · · · Q· · So of that 20,000 total that you

10· ·approximately have done, you said you've maybe seen post

11· ·coagulation necrosis syndrome five times?

12· · · · · A· · That's correct.

13· · · · · Q· · Would you characterize that as a rare

14· ·diagnosis?

15· · · · · A· · It can be rare.

16· · · · · Q· · So it's not something that comes to your mind

17· ·first thing if there's new pain presented?

18· · · · · A· · Whenever there is pain, I always get an

19· ·abdominal imaging if it is not what I expected.

20· · · · · Q· · Now when Dr. Von Feldmann asked you about how

21· ·you would have taken care of the patient in this case

22· ·with the one-centimeter polyp, you stated that you would

23· ·not utilize hot biopsy.· Why would you not utilize a hot

24· ·biopsy?
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·1· · · · · A· · Because I already made a electrocoagulation

·2· ·burn, an additional burn, I would not do because I worry

·3· ·about higher risk of perforation.· Therefore, I would not

·4· ·do it.

·5· · · · · Q· · What happens when there's a burn like that

·6· ·with the snare?

·7· · · · · A· · The bowel wall is already somewhat weakened.

·8· ·Additional burn will further weaken the bowel wall.

·9· · · · · Q· · So would you characterize this additional

10· ·burn as the probable cause of a perforation in this case?

11· · · · · A· · It is one of the possibilities.

12· · · · · Q· · In looking at the enema that was requested,

13· ·why would you not perform an enema after a possible risk

14· ·of colon perforation?

15· · · · · A· · Enema itself can cause colon perforation.· It

16· ·is a rare risk.· If the bowel -- if there's already a

17· ·tear and you put additional things into it, you can cause

18· ·a bigger mechanical tear.· That is why it is a

19· ·contraindication to perform an enema if a bowel

20· ·perforation is suspected.· You do not want to make the

21· ·perforation worse.

22· · · · · Q· · So as a gastroenterologist, it's very

23· ·important then to understand these contraindications when

24· ·a case like this presents where you have to manage it.
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·1· ·Would you characterize it --

·2· · · · · A· · You have to know the indications and

·3· ·contraindications in everything that you do.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Thank you, Dr. Shih.· I have no

·5· ·more questions at this time.

·6· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Can I have another

·7· ·question?

·8· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· We usually don't

·9· ·allow that.

10· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Okay.· It's good.

11· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· He can.

13· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· I will give leeway

14· ·since Mr. Cumings is not opposed to you doing that.· So

15· ·it's called recross, but it's not usual, but go ahead.

16

17· · · · · · · · · · ·RECROSS EXAMINATION

18· ·BY DR. VON FELDMANN:

19· · · · · Q· · What do you think was the significance of the

20· ·tear in the ascending -- on the serosal side of the

21· ·ascending colon which the surgeon described and which was

22· ·not described on the pathology specimen?

23· · · · · A· · I believe the pathology specimen also

24· ·described a tear.· The serosa is on the outside of the
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·1· ·bowel wall, so the surgeon described the tear on a

·2· ·serosa.· That tells me that the tear is a complete tear

·3· ·from inside of the colon all the way to the outside of

·4· ·the colon, and the length is 9 centimeter, which is a

·5· ·little bit larger than 3.5 inches.· I consider that big,

·6· ·complete tear.

·7· · · · · Q· · So you believe that the tear which the

·8· ·surgeon describes was 9 centimeters long perforation?

·9· · · · · A· · He documented it on his procedure note in

10· ·surgery.· I believe there's no reason for the surgeon to

11· ·document otherwise.

12· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· That's it.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· The IC rests its case-in-chief.

14· ·If Dr. Von Feldmann would like to present his case now, I

15· ·think that -- I don't believe I need to call you as a

16· ·witness in this case, so --

17· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Are you intending

18· ·to release Dr. Shih or do you prefer he stay here for

19· ·potential rebuttal?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'd like for him to stay for

21· ·potential rebuttal, if that's okay.

22· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Yes, of course.

23· · · · · · · ·Dr. Shih, did you hear and understand what

24· ·just took place?
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·1· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I need to stay for the

·2· ·potential rebuttal.

·3· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Yes.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· So stay.

·5· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Thank you.· Okay.

·6· · · · · · · ·So, Dr. Von Feldmann, this is your chance to

·7· ·testify.· I'm going to have you raise your right hand and

·8· ·be sworn before you testify.

·9

10· · · · · · · · ·DIETRICH VON FELDMANN, M.D.,

11· · · · · · · having been first duly sworn, was

12· · · · · · ·examined and testified as follows:

13

14· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Thank you.

15· ·So it's not normal for you to ask yourself questions, so

16· ·I'm going to ask you to go ahead and just state what you

17· ·want to tell me for the record.

18· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Can you ask me all the

19· ·questions again what she asked Dr. Shih?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Can I ask you?· No.· So you

21· ·have to testify on your behalf now.· Typically, if you

22· ·were represented, your attorney would call you as a

23· ·witness and ask you questions, but now you have to

24· ·narratively sort of tell your side of the story and try
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·1· ·to tie it back to the exhibits in the record.

·2· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Right.· So

·3· ·Mr. Cumings has chosen not to ask you questions as part

·4· ·of his case.· Otherwise, he would have questions that he

·5· ·would ask you, but he's decided not to do that.· So this

·6· ·is your chance just to tell your side of the case and for

·7· ·you to tell me what you want me to know for me to make a

·8· ·decision.

·9· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· First of all, I would like

10· ·to restate what I stated at the beginning, that I would

11· ·do exactly the same as what I did or wanted to do which

12· ·they didn't let me do because against my advice without

13· ·further workup, they referred the patient to Renown.

14· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Is there anything

15· ·else you want to tell me?

16· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I don't think that the

17· ·tear which the surgeon described had anything to do with

18· ·the perforation.· The surgeon did not describe how deep

19· ·that tear was.· Normally when there is a tear in the

20· ·colon due to what we call barotrauma:· B-A-R-O, it's on

21· ·the inside of the colon.

22· · · · · · · ·There is a term for that called catscratch

23· ·colon, and these tears are usually superficial.· We

24· ·usually do not see tears on the outside of the colon
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·1· ·because the patients usually do not go to surgery.  I

·2· ·have seen several patients with postcoagulation syndrome.

·3· · · · · · · ·I remember a case we had at another

·4· ·institution just a few weeks before.· The patient had --

·5· ·patient went to the emergency room.· He had pain.· They

·6· ·did a CAT scan on this patient, showed free air.· I asked

·7· ·the radiologist to please do a gastrografin enema which

·8· ·he refused.

·9· · · · · · · ·I don't know why he refused it and he didn't

10· ·tell me why, but there was a surgeon involved in his care

11· ·at the same time, and I had a long discussion with that

12· ·surgeon and I was surprisingly able to convince him that

13· ·we should treat this patient conservatively.· That means

14· ·without surgery for the time being.· And he said:· Let's

15· ·do it.· So the patient was admitted to the hospital on

16· ·antibiotics and probably pain medication.

17· · · · · · · ·He became asymptomatic within one to two days

18· ·and was discharged three days later asymptomatic and

19· ·never had a problem again.· So most people would have

20· ·said this patient had a perforation.· So in the

21· ·literature, five to 15 percent of patients who have free

22· ·air in the abdomen do not need surgery.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'd like to lodge an objection

24· ·to that.· There was no document or peer-reviewed study
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·1· ·that was provided to refer or corroborate that statement.

·2· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· I'll take that as

·3· ·an opinion.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· There are, according to

·6· ·the literature, quite a few other conditions which lead

·7· ·to free air in the abdomen and some of them have pain

·8· ·too.

·9· · · · · · · ·I have learned on many postgraduate meetings

10· ·that when there is a suspicion for perforation after

11· ·colonoscopy that gastrografin enema is the diagnostic

12· ·procedure to consider.· That's why I suggested this to

13· ·Dr. Ventura when I saw the patient in the emergency room

14· ·the next day.· But Dr. Ventura didn't want to go that way

15· ·because he told me he was going out of town in the

16· ·afternoon.· He didn't want to have any problems with this

17· ·patient, so that's why he transferred the patient to

18· ·Renown rather than going with my suggestion to take this

19· ·patient to Fallon Hospital because they have fluoroscopy

20· ·which we don't have at Mount Grant General Hospital.· And

21· ·in my opinion, that would not have shown any perforation.

22· · · · · · · ·And if the radiologist would have called me

23· ·and told me there's no evidence of perforation, I would

24· ·have asked him to do a paracentesis on this patient which
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·1· ·means sticking in a needle into the abdomen to suck the

·2· ·air out because I believed that the pain which the

·3· ·patient complained of in the right upper quadrant

·4· ·radiating to the right shoulder was due to the free air

·5· ·in that area.

·6· · · · · · · ·The patient, according to the records, also

·7· ·complained of some pain in the right lower quadrant of

·8· ·the abdomen which I believe was due to the

·9· ·postcoagulation syndrome.· I did not use a hot biopsy

10· ·forceps on the polyp which I removed from the cecum.· The

11· ·polypectomy site looked to me fabulous.

12· · · · · · · ·Very often when we do EMR and there is a

13· ·possibility of perforation, we usually see something in

14· ·the crater caused by the EMR.· There is very often a

15· ·small black spot which we call target lesion.· If we see

16· ·something like that, then we would consider to use some

17· ·clips to close the polypectomy site so that there is no

18· ·leakage.

19· · · · · · · ·The surgeon described in his operative report

20· ·that there was no evidence of spillage.· There was no

21· ·fecal matter in the peritoneal cavity in spite of the

22· ·fact that the pathologist described abundance of fecal

23· ·matter in the cecal area together with air.· So if that

24· ·would have been a nine-centimeter long perforation, that
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·1· ·definitely would have been spillage.

·2· · · · · · · ·I was convinced that this patient had

·3· ·postcoagulation necrosis syndrome.· This can lead to free

·4· ·air in the abdomen.· The area of the cecum is very thin.

·5· ·It's about up to three millimeters in thickness when the

·6· ·colon is not distended by air, but when it is distended

·7· ·by air, then it probably is even less and it's even less

·8· ·after we did an EMR.· So I thought that the air must have

·9· ·leaked through this area because of the thinness of the

10· ·colon after EMR.

11· · · · · · · ·But thinking about this further, I believe

12· ·that this patient had what we call a microperforation in

13· ·the area of the polypectomy.· Microperforations close

14· ·without any intervention.· The patient or the patient's

15· ·wife stated that he had pain level of ten out of ten

16· ·after the colonoscopy.

17· · · · · · · ·First of all, the scale of pain is very

18· ·subjective.· I never use it.· So ten out of ten would

19· ·mean cutting the leg off without any anesthesia.· That

20· ·would be ten out of ten.· So it didn't keep the patient

21· ·from eating cookies and drinking something.· So somebody

22· ·that had pain ten out of ten would not do that.· So and

23· ·the nurse's note after the colonoscopy at the time they

24· ·discharged him stated that he was stable.· I talked to
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·1· ·the nurse who was in the endoscopy -- postendoscopy room,

·2· ·and she said that -- stable means the vital signs were

·3· ·normal and the patient was without significant pain.

·4· · · · · · · ·It's not unusual to have some discomfort

·5· ·after colonoscopy which is usually due to air in the

·6· ·colon.· And this procedure was lengthy because I did not

·7· ·only approach the polyp in the cecum with EMR.· There was

·8· ·another polyp in the proximal ascending colon which was

·9· ·in a very difficult location, and I decided not to remove

10· ·this polyp completely because it would have been so

11· ·difficult.· And that's where I used the hot biopsy.

12· · · · · · · ·I know that from the meetings I went to,

13· ·particularly a meeting I attended in Chicago just a few

14· ·weeks before that the country's most prominent

15· ·colonoscopist, whose name is Douglas Rex, he very often

16· ·uses a hot biopsy forceps to do some touchup work, and

17· ·that's what I used on the second polyp which was not

18· ·totally removed.

19· · · · · · · ·And I also believe that the patient,

20· ·according to pathology report, had postcoagulation

21· ·necrosis syndrome in the area too.· Postcoagulation

22· ·necrosis syndrome always means that there is an

23· ·irritation of the serosa, which is the outer surface of

24· ·the intestine.· But there was no evidence of any
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·1· ·peritonitis anywhere else.

·2· · · · · · · ·So microperforation in a patient with

·3· ·postpolypectomy coagulation necrosis is similar to a

·4· ·patient who has diverticulosis and develops

·5· ·diverticulitis.· This is usually due to microperforation,

·6· ·and those patients in the vast majority are treated

·7· ·without surgery.· And I had no reason to assume that this

·8· ·patient had anything else besides postcoagulation

·9· ·necrosis syndrome because a polypectomy site in the cecum

10· ·looked very, very good.· There was no evidence of

11· ·perforation.

12· · · · · · · ·I discussed this with one of the world's best

13· ·therapeutic endoscopists in the world in San Francisco

14· ·whose name is Kenneth Bimmoeller, which is spelled:

15· ·B-I-M-M-O-E-L-L-E-R.· He says that microperforation can

16· ·be caused just by sticking a needle through the colonic

17· ·wall which we basically always do when we do EMR to raise

18· ·the polyp with normal saline or what we used here Eleview

19· ·so we go beyond the polyp and very often goes beyond the

20· ·serosa, and then we pull it back and inject.· And as soon

21· ·as we see a blip, then we know that we are where we want

22· ·to be, namely in the submucosa and then we inject more.

23· · · · · · · ·So he said microperforation can be caused by

24· ·just a needle.· And there was a considerable amount of
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·1· ·pressure in the right end of the colon because the

·2· ·procedure took longer than I expected, so there was

·3· ·opportunity for the air to escape through that area.

·4· · · · · · · ·Normally, we use C02 for colonoscopy, but

·5· ·this was not available at the institution where I did the

·6· ·colonoscopy.· So that's why the air was hanging around

·7· ·there for a considerable amount of time.· So the C02

·8· ·would probably have been absorbed much faster but the

·9· ·patient probably would have had more pain because C02, in

10· ·the peritoneal cavity, is very irritant.· That's what the

11· ·surgeons used for laparoscopy, but when I did

12· ·laparoscopy, I didn't use propofol, which we use for

13· ·sedation in colonoscopy.· I used very little sedation, so

14· ·it would have been impossible to use C02 with minimal

15· ·sedation.· So if we would have used C02, the patient

16· ·would have had more pain in the right upper quadrant.· So

17· ·I believe that this patient had microperforations which

18· ·sealed probably almost immediately.

19· · · · · · · ·Gastrografin has been used many times in this

20· ·situation.· There is no contraindication to that

21· ·according to the literature and what I learned on the

22· ·meetings.· I am convinced that the gastrografin study

23· ·would not have shown an extravasation of the contrast

24· ·material if they would have gone along with my
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·1· ·suggestions.· And I believe that if that would not have

·2· ·shown any extravasation, I would have asked the

·3· ·radiologist to suck the air out of the right upper

·4· ·quadrant with a needle under ultrasound or CT guidance.

·5· ·But that probably would have made the patient almost

·6· ·asymptomatic right away.

·7· · · · · · · ·In my opinion, this patient should not have

·8· ·gone to surgery.· The patient, like the other patient I

·9· ·was describing before, would have gone home within a few

10· ·days with antibiotics and clear liquids by mouth and

11· ·maybe some pain medication if necessary.· This patient is

12· ·not plausible -- was not plausible as far as his pain

13· ·level was concerned.

14· · · · · · · ·I apparently was called by the wife sometime

15· ·in the p.m. after the colonoscopy stating to me that he

16· ·was still in pain, and I told her that this was due to

17· ·postcoagulation syndrome which I explained to the patient

18· ·already immediately after the procedure and I prescribed

19· ·some analgesics.· I don't know how they got that

20· ·prescription because I was not in the hospital anymore,

21· ·but maybe somebody took it over to the emergency room and

22· ·told the wife to pick it up from there.· So I don't know

23· ·where the patient took this pain medication, but the

24· ·records described that he was able to quote, "sleep off"
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·1· ·the pain.· That means he didn't have any significant pain

·2· ·during the night.· And I also would have expected the

·3· ·patient to go to the emergency room if that would not

·4· ·have been the case but he didn't.· He waited until the

·5· ·next morning.

·6· · · · · · · ·If he would have gone to the emergency room

·7· ·during the night, they would have called me and I

·8· ·certainly would have gone to the emergency room to check

·9· ·the patient out.· And I would have ordered a CT scan at

10· ·that time.· I didn't think that the CT scan was indicated

11· ·after the colonoscopy because it usually doesn't show any

12· ·postcoagulation necrosis syndrome.· Sometimes it shows a

13· ·little bit of maybe thickening of the wall, but on the CT

14· ·scan which they ordered next morning in the emergency

15· ·room, there was absolutely nothing to be seen in the area

16· ·of the polypectomies.

17· · · · · · · ·The distension of the colon described on CT

18· ·was not in the area of the right side of the colon or

19· ·cecum.· It was described in the transverse colon which we

20· ·didn't approach with anything, and that was not ten

21· ·centimeters as the surgeon described.· It was only 6.5

22· ·centimeters.· Why it was in the transverse colon, I don't

23· ·know, but it was probably due to there still being a

24· ·significant amount of air in the colon, but it was
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·1· ·insignificant.

·2· · · · · · · ·And I also believe that the tear which was

·3· ·described by the surgeon in the ascending colon had

·4· ·nothing to do with the patient's symptoms and that it was

·5· ·not a perforation.· He did not even describe how deep

·6· ·that tear was, and I am convinced that the tear was very

·7· ·superficial as they usually are in the so-called

·8· ·catscratch colon on the inside of the colon.· The

·9· ·pathology report did not describe any perforation.· The

10· ·records also say that Dr. Shih or Dr. Shih claims that I

11· ·didn't take care of my records properly.

12· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· I don't believe

13· ·that's --

14· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· That's not -- I didn't use that

15· ·as an allegation or a charge.

16· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· But it was -- originally,

17· ·it was held against me.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· By whom?

19· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Maybe by you.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· No, sir.

21· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· No?· But it's in there.

22· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Well --

23· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· But he claims that I

24· ·didn't take care of my records.
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·1· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Just so you know,

·2· ·that's something that I'm not going to consider.· So the

·3· ·records aren't before me.

·4· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I don't know how he got to

·5· ·that conclusion.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I don't believe that he made

·7· ·that conclusion, sir.

·8· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· But it's in here.

·9· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Again,

10· ·Dr. Von Feldmann, I'm not going to consider any

11· ·allegation about your records.

12· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Okay.· Okay.· But I wanted

13· ·to straighten that out.

14· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Well, as

15· ·far as I'm concerned, your records were appropriate.· So

16· ·I don't think you need to defend yourself.

17· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yes.· But it's in here,

18· ·and he claimed that.

19· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.

20· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· And wanted to state that I

21· ·was not asked for giving a consultation when I saw the

22· ·patient in the emergency room.· So if I was not asked for

23· ·giving a consultation, I don't have to write a note.

24· ·That was up to the PCP, and he didn't.· He didn't write
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·1· ·anything.

·2· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Would you like to take a few

·4· ·minutes, Dr. Von Feldmann?

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· What?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Would you like to take a few

·7· ·minutes?

·8· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I don't need it.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· So what else?· So I'm not

11· ·sure what kind of pain the pain level the patient really

12· ·had because he had apparently slept through the night.

13· ·And when I saw the patient in the emergency room the next

14· ·morning, he was not in any significant distress.

15· · · · · · · ·When he arrived at Renown, the H&P written by

16· ·mid-level person -- that means probably by an APRN, said

17· ·the patient was in no significant distress.· And I told

18· ·the patient after the procedure that he should not eat

19· ·anything besides clear liquids until a.m., and in the

20· ·a.m., he could advance to more normal diet if he had no

21· ·pain.· And I intended to call the patient in the morning

22· ·to make sure that he was okay.· And he ate cookies while

23· ·he allegedly had pain ten out of ten which --

24· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Did they tell you -- Sorry.
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·1· ·I'd like to lodge an objection.· I'd like to have that

·2· ·referred to in the record about the patient eating.  I

·3· ·don't recall seeing that in his operative report or any

·4· ·of the documents.

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Can you speak up, sir.  I

·6· ·didn't hear you.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'd like to make an objection.

·8· ·I'd request that you refer to the record in that whether

·9· ·he ate or not.

10· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Yeah.· He's asking

11· ·where in the record he says he ate cookies and after the

12· ·procedure.

13· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yes.

14· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· And I know it's

15· ·been mentioned earlier without objection, but I'll note

16· ·that it's on -- I'll also note that it's on Exhibit 17 at

17· ·page 89.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Okay.

19· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· It says he ate two

20· ·cookies and some juice after his colonoscopy yesterday

21· ·recorded at Renown.

22· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I don't think that

23· ·somebody with a pain level of ten out of ten would eat

24· ·cookies.· The history and physical from Renown prior to
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·1· ·the operation also stated that the patient had some form

·2· ·of chronic abdominal pain.· I believe that the patient

·3· ·was not particularly compliant because he was supposed to

·4· ·come for surveillance colonoscopy long before he had this

·5· ·colonoscopy because of all of the polyps which he had

·6· ·before.· So the polyp in the cecum would not have been as

·7· ·large, and it was probably larger than one centimeter

·8· ·which I stated.· So and besides that, the patient had

·9· ·many more significant polyps in the ascending colon which

10· ·I did not consider to remove at that time because the

11· ·procedure took too long already.

12· · · · · · · ·And I also believe that the patient probably

13· ·was served well by having hemicolectomy because of all of

14· ·these additional polyps.· But it did not have to be done

15· ·at that time.· But it should have been done maybe later

16· ·on after extensive discussion with the patient.· But he

17· ·would have needed quite a few additional EMRs which would

18· ·have led maybe to more post polypectomy coagulation

19· ·necrosis.· So I believe he would have been a candidate

20· ·for a hemicolectomy at a later time.

21· · · · · · · ·The patient stated after the colonoscopy that

22· ·he had never had this kind of pain before after

23· ·colonoscopy, which I apparently also performed, at least

24· ·the one nine or ten years before.· He did not have the
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·1· ·pain because he didn't have an EMR and he did not have

·2· ·all of these additional polyps in the ascending colon

·3· ·which if he would have shown up earlier would have been

·4· ·easy to remove.· So I believe that probably would have --

·5· ·it's significant that the patient had some form of

·6· ·chronic abdominal pain before and nobody knew why.

·7· · · · · · · ·I gave -- at the time when the patient was

·8· ·taken by air to Renown before they left the emergency

·9· ·room, I gave the wife a note to give to the doctors at

10· ·Renown to consider a gastrografin enema before they would

11· ·take the patient to surgery, and they would not have

12· ·found a perforation.· And I was proven right by the

13· ·pathology report.

14· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· What exhibit is

15· ·the pathology report?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I think Exhibit 19 is what

17· ·we're referring to, and that's the CT report from Mount

18· ·Grant.· Is that what you're referring to, Dr. Von

19· ·Feldmann?

20· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· When you say the

21· ·pathology report, which exhibit are you referring to,

22· ·Doctor?

23· · · · · · · ·DR.· SHIH:· I can answer that question if you

24· ·need.· It's pages 19, page 162 to 163.
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·1· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Radiology report.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Are you referring to the Renown

·3· ·records, Dr. Shih?· Are you referring to the number at

·4· ·the bottom of the right page?

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. SHIH:· Yes.· I believe Dr. Von Feldmann

·6· ·was talking about the pathology report not radiology.

·7· ·Pathology report is on Section 19, page 162 and 163.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· That's Exhibit 17 as pages 161

·9· ·and 162.

10· · · · · · · ·DR. SHIH:· Yes, that is correct.· Seventeen.

11· ·Yes.

12· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· When you say

13· ·pathology report, I just want to make sure that I know

14· ·what you're referencing.

15· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Okay.· Let's see here.

16· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· So if you go to

17· ·the bottom, there's numbers --

18· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Which page?

19· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· See these numbers

20· ·at the bottom?· 162 through 163.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· It says:· NSBME in front of it.

22· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· That's page number --

23· ·which page number?

24· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· 161 through 162.
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·1· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I don't have that on here.

·2· ·I have page number five.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· No.· We're looking at these

·4· ·ones.· So yours are out of order.

·5· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Let me show you on

·6· ·mine.· Is this what you're talking about when you talk

·7· ·about the pathology report?· And for the record, that's

·8· ·Exhibit 17, page 162.· And please don't write on it

·9· ·because that's my copy.

10· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yeah, yeah, yeah.

11· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Just want to make

12· ·sure.

13· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Hemicolectomy, histology

14· ·section.· Transmural defect with adjacent loculated

15· ·purulent material.· It does not say anything about a

16· ·perforation.· Histology showed area of mucosal necrosis.

17· ·Marked acute and chronic.· I don't know why that should

18· ·be chronic after one day.· And the polyps which I treated

19· ·were benign.

20· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So is this

21· ·the pathology report then?

22· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yes.

23· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· This document?

24· ·Okay.· So for the record, that's Exhibit 17.· That was
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·1· ·page 162.

·2· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· It says nothing about a

·3· ·perforation.

·4· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· So the perforation, the

·6· ·microperforation in which the patient probably had was

·7· ·closed, which it always does.· And as I said before, it's

·8· ·similar to diverticulitis on the left side of the colon

·9· ·which is probably, in most cases, due to microperforation

10· ·of a diverticulum because the wall of the diverticulum is

11· ·very thin and it heals over, and these patients don't go

12· ·to surgery in most cases unless they have complications

13· ·from diverticulitis.

14· · · · · · · ·So let's see.· And it's also important to

15· ·mention that this patient did not have fever or elevation

16· ·of white blood cell count prior to surgery.· If there

17· ·would have been a major peritonitis, the patient probably

18· ·would have had fever and elevation of the white blood

19· ·cell count.· I did not get a CT scan in the p.m. after

20· ·the colonoscopy because I was totally convinced that

21· ·there was no perforation; that there was just a

22· ·postcoagulation necrosis syndrome because the polypectomy

23· ·site and the cecum just looked too good.· Unfortunately,

24· ·we could not get those color pictures.· That would have
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·1· ·been very helpful.

·2· · · · · · · ·So if they would have called me during the

·3· ·night, they had all of my -- they had my cell phone

·4· ·number.· If the wife would have called me, I would have

·5· ·told them to go to the emergency room, and I would have

·6· ·called and I would have seen the patient in the emergency

·7· ·room, and I would have ordered a CT scan at that time

·8· ·which would not have shown anything.

·9· · · · · · · ·And there was not -- on the CT scan which

10· ·they got at Mount Grant General Hospital in the morning,

11· ·there was not even a wall thickening or anything on the

12· ·outside of the cecum seen on CT scan.· And normally, we

13· ·do not see anything in postcoagulation necrosis on CT

14· ·scan.· That's why I did not order it earlier.· And in my

15· ·book, this patient would not have stayed in the hospital

16· ·for nine days.· He would have stayed in the hospital for

17· ·maybe three days and then would have been discharged.

18· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Let's take

19· ·a little break.· I don't know if you're done with what

20· ·you're just testifying to, but we're going to take a

21· ·little break, we're going to come back, and I'll give you

22· ·a chance to add anything else that you'd like to add and

23· ·then after that, Mr. Cumings will question you.

24· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· After that what?
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·1· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Mr. Cumings, after

·2· ·that, Mr. Cumings is allowed to ask you questions.

·3· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Good.

·4· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Let's take about

·5· ·an -- It's 10:22.· Let's come back at 10:30.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Recess.)

·7· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· We're back on the

·8· ·record in Case Number 22-31575-1, in the matter of the

·9· ·charges and complaint against Dietrich Von Feldmann,

10· ·M.D., Respondent.

11· · · · · · · ·When we took a break, Dr. Von Feldmann was in

12· ·the midst of presenting his presentation.· There was a

13· ·pause.· I don't know if he's finished.· I informed him

14· ·that we would take a break and he could recommence that

15· ·if he chose to do so.

16· · · · · · · ·Dr. Von Feldmann, is there anything you want

17· ·to add to what you've already testified to?· And if so, I

18· ·remind you that you remain under oath.

19· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I would say that I have

20· ·performed at least 40,000 colonoscopies and I have spent

21· ·most of my career in endoscopy and therapeutic endoscopy.

22· ·Therapeutic endoscopy means all kinds of therapy we do

23· ·through the scope.· So I think that I have plenty of

24· ·experience to judge this kind of situation.
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·1· · · · · · · ·And I would say two ways to approach this

·2· ·somewhat unusual and complicated case.· There are two

·3· ·ways to approach this.· What one would be to think inside

·4· ·of the box or outside of the box.· So I would say that I

·5· ·thought somewhat outside of the box, but thinking inside

·6· ·of the box would be somebody comes to the emergency room

·7· ·after colonoscopy with pain and air or gas shows up on CT

·8· ·scan, the reflex is surgery.· That's why a surgeon did

·9· ·not consider any further workup before.

10· · · · · · · ·And I don't know whether the wife of the

11· ·patient gave my note to the surgeon which says

12· ·gastrografin enema.· That's what they should have done.

13· ·I think that's all I have to say.· I would say again that

14· ·I would do exactly the same as I did and wanted to do if

15· ·they would have let me.

16· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Thank you, Dr. Von

17· ·Feldmann.· Now Mr. Cumings is going to ask you some

18· ·questions.

19

20· · · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

21· ·BY MR. CUMINGS:

22· · · · · Q· · I'll try to be brief, Dr. Von Feldmann.· What

23· ·did you rely on to determine that there was a microtear

24· ·instead of a full perforation?
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·1· · · · · A· · Full perforation means that the surgeon

·2· ·described it in the pathology report.· And the way the

·3· ·polypectomy site looked, I had no reason to do that.

·4· · · · · Q· · Do you recall Dr. Shih testifying in regards

·5· ·to your response to the Board that the patient's wife

·6· ·called you that night when analgesics were prescribed?

·7· · · · · A· · Say that again.

·8· · · · · Q· · Do you recall Dr. Shih, he testified that in

·9· ·reading your allegation letter, that you had stated that

10· ·the patient's wife had called you that night after the

11· ·colonoscopy?

12· · · · · A· · Sometime.· Sometime in the p.m.· I don't know

13· ·when that was, but I certainly was not in the hospital

14· ·anymore.

15· · · · · Q· · At that point, why didn't you refer the

16· ·patient to the ER?

17· · · · · A· · Because I thought that the patient had

18· ·postcoagulation necrosis syndrome and the pain after that

19· ·lasts for a while, can last for several days.· That's why

20· ·I told the patient not to eat anything but clear liquids,

21· ·clear liquids before next morning unless the pain

22· ·continued.

23· · · · · Q· · Did you consider colon perforation in your

24· ·differential diagnosis before you prescribed the
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·1· ·analgesics for the patient?

·2· · · · · A· · For me, it was very clear that this patient

·3· ·had this postcoagulation necrosis syndrome and not a

·4· ·perforation.

·5· · · · · Q· · And my last question for you is:· Do patients

·6· ·typically complain of severe pain with catscratch colon?

·7· · · · · A· · No.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· They don't?· Okay.· I think

·9· ·that's all of the questions I have for Dr. Von Feldmann.

10· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Dr. Von Feldmann,

11· ·is there anything you would like to add?

12· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· No.

13· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So with

14· ·that, I'm just going to ask you if you formally want to

15· ·close your side of the case and just submit it on what

16· ·you've told me.

17· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Say that again.

18· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· So this is the

19· ·point where I ask you if you're done presenting your

20· ·case.

21· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Well, I think I'm sure

22· ·that I've forgot something, but this is basically what I

23· ·have to say.

24· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · · ·Are you going to have rebuttal?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Yes, I will have rebuttal.

·3· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So that

·4· ·means that based on what you said, he is going to present

·5· ·the final word on his case.· He gets to do that because

·6· ·he has the burden of proof.· And then once we go through

·7· ·that, you will have an opportunity to make a closing

·8· ·statement and then the matter will be submitted to me to

·9· ·make a decision.· So with that, he's going to present his

10· ·rebuttal case.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I would like to call Dr. Shih

12· ·as a rebuttal witness.

13· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.

14

15· · · · · · · · · ·REBUTTAL EXAMINATION

16· ·BY MR. CUMINGS:

17· · · · · Q· · Dr. Shih, how are you doing, sir?

18· · · · · A· · I'm good.

19· · · · · Q· · Good.· Thank you for bearing through with us

20· ·here.· I want to turn your attention first to the

21· ·pathology report that was discussed that was page 162 and

22· ·163.· The date the pathology report was reported was

23· ·6-27.· What was the final diagnosis?

24· · · · · A· · The final diagnosis showed there is polyps,
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·1· ·diverticulosis, and on the specimen, there is transmural

·2· ·defect one centimeter from the IC valve.· Transmural

·3· ·defect to me, it's a tear perforation of the colon that

·4· ·occurred one centimeter away from the IC valve.

·5· ·Additionally, there is also an abscess next to the tear

·6· ·of the transmural defect that is .5 by .5 by .5

·7· ·centimeter.· That tells me that the tear caused the

·8· ·abscess which is an infection.

·9· · · · · Q· · Is it typically the job of the pathologist or

10· ·the surgeon to report whether there is a tear?

11· · · · · A· · I'm not a pathologist nor a surgeon, but I

12· ·think it's typical in my experience.

13· · · · · Q· · That the surgeon would document whether

14· ·there's a tear in the colon?

15· · · · · A· · The surgeon as in this case would document

16· ·that there is a tear, yes, as well and the pathologist

17· ·would document whether it's transmural or not.· And

18· ·transmural, what that means is the defect, whatever it

19· ·is, has gone through the whole bowel wall of the colon.

20· ·That's what transmural means.

21· · · · · Q· · Does that need to be explicitly documented as

22· ·in the O.R. report from the surgeon as Dr. Von Feldmann

23· ·has suggested?

24· · · · · A· · Not necessarily.
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·1· · · · · Q· · Are you familiar with the term catscratch

·2· ·colon?

·3· · · · · A· · It's an old term that I don't teach my

·4· ·fellows.

·5· · · · · Q· · But you're aware of it?

·6· · · · · A· · I'm sorry?

·7· · · · · Q· · But you're aware of it?· You've heard of that

·8· ·term before?

·9· · · · · A· · It's a very old term that I'm aware of, but

10· ·we don't use it anymore.

11· · · · · Q· · What --

12· · · · · A· · Or I don't use it.· I don't use that term.

13· · · · · Q· · Is there a new term that's utilized instead?

14· · · · · A· · To reflect catscratch colon.· I mean, number

15· ·one, I do not know what exactly that is.· I refer to it

16· ·objectively as a post polypectomy site biopsy site.  I

17· ·just I don't use it because I do not know what it means.

18· · · · · Q· · Are you familiar with barotrauma?

19· · · · · A· · Yes.

20· · · · · Q· · How does barotrauma occur?

21· · · · · A· · By putting excessive gas.

22· · · · · Q· · Can barotrauma cause the sort of pain that

23· ·was reported to be experienced in this case?

24· · · · · A· · It can cause pain, but not to the degree that
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·1· ·patient says:· Ten out of ten.

·2· · · · · Q· · Can barotrauma cause a nine-centimeter tear

·3· ·in a colon?

·4· · · · · A· · If you put enough air, it can perforate.

·5· · · · · Q· · But you would have to?

·6· · · · · A· · If you do not stop and keep on putting air

·7· ·in, it can perforate and cause a nine-centimeter tear.

·8· · · · · Q· · But he would have to be the one to put air

·9· ·into the patient at that point; correct?

10· · · · · A· · Yes, using the colonoscope to keep on putting

11· ·air after air after air.· It is not something that is

12· ·done.· It should not be done.

13· · · · · Q· · In regards to whether the --

14· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Just to clarify,

15· ·if I may, you're not alleging that that's what defendant

16· ·did in this case, are you?

17· · · · · Q· · (BY MR. CUMINGS:)· No, no.

18· · · · · · · ·So what was the most likely source of the

19· ·free air in the patient's right upper quadrant?

20· · · · · A· · The most likely source is due to either the

21· ·endoscopic mucosal resection or the hot biopsy forceps.

22· · · · · Q· · Dr. Von Feldmann noted that there was no

23· ·fecal contamination that the surgeon found.· Would you

24· ·expect a large amount of fecal contamination in a patient
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·1· ·that just had a colonoscopy and a large amount of

·2· ·preparation for that colonoscopy?

·3· · · · · A· · No, because the patient has not eaten for

·4· ·approximately three days.· The bowel content has been

·5· ·washed out by the bowel prep.· And as Dr. Von Feldmann

·6· ·wrote in his colonoscopy report, the bowel prep was

·7· ·adequate meaning there is no residual feces.· So if the

·8· ·patient only ate two pieces of crackers, there would not

·9· ·be any bowel content and there wouldn't be any feces to

10· ·extravasate.

11· · · · · Q· · And you said it had been three days since the

12· ·patient had likely eaten for good preparation?

13· · · · · A· · So when the patient showed up at Renown, it

14· ·is documented by the history and physical that it has

15· ·been three days since the patient last ate a full meal.

16· ·And from the testimony this morning, it appears to me

17· ·that the patient has drank water and maybe couple of

18· ·pieces of cracker from the time that he did the bowel

19· ·prep, which is one day before, I would assume that's June

20· ·19th, to when he presented to Renown was June 21st.· 19,

21· ·20, 21.· That's three days.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I think that's all of the

23· ·questions that I have for Dr. Shih.

24· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Dr. Von Feldmann,
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·1· ·did you have any follow-up questions for Dr. Shih?

·2

·3· · · · · · · · · · · ·CROSS-EXAMINATION

·4

·5· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I didn't understand

·6· ·everything he said, but I would like to know what tear he

·7· ·was alluding to.

·8· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Maybe you could be

·9· ·more specific about the context.· Do you mean the tear

10· ·that's alleged to have led to the surgery?

11· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Yes, or to the pathology

12· ·report.

13· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Dr. Shih, do you

14· ·understand the question?

15· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I completely understand.

16· ·I believe there is a tear in this patient for several

17· ·reasons.· Number one, there is free air.· Large amount of

18· ·free air.· Number two:· The surgeon wrote there is a

19· ·nine-centimeter tear in the serosal side.· Number three:

20· ·The pathologist report on 17, page 162 to 163 under

21· ·gross, says there's a transmural tear with necrotic

22· ·tissue.· And in the histology, there's a transmural

23· ·defect, both of which are in the area where Dr. Von

24· ·Feldmann performed the surgery.
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·1· · · · · · · ·So the tear occurred because there is a free

·2· ·air.· The surgeon noted that air and said 9 centimeter

·3· ·tear on the serosal side, and the pathologist wrote there

·4· ·is a transmural defect, all of which are consistent that

·5· ·there is a tear.

·6· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· The pathology did not

·7· ·describe a transmural necrosis where the surgeon

·8· ·described the nine-centimeter tear.· The surgeon did not

·9· ·even describe how deep that tear was.

10· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· It's on the serosal side.· And

11· ·I'll read what the pathologist actually wrote.

12· · · · · · · ·The cecum has focal area of necrotic mucosa

13· ·with a transmural defect identified one centimeter from

14· ·the ileocecal valve with an adjacent 0.5 times 0.5 times

15· ·0.5 centimeter abscess cavity.

16· · · · · · · ·A transmural defect is a tear, and what I

17· ·read is on page 163.· And that's under the gross

18· ·description.· That's what the pathologist saw grossly.

19· · · · · · · ·And on the previous page, which is 162, the

20· ·histology says:· Area of mucosal necrosis.· Mucosal

21· ·necrosis means tissues that are dying or dead, and that

22· ·is in the area that they he saw the tear grossly.· And

23· ·under the right final diagnosis right colon, it says, on

24· ·the second line under that, it says transmural defect.

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 76
·1· ·Again, there is a defect that's transmural.· Transmural

·2· ·means through across a whole depth of the wall.· That is

·3· ·a tear.

·4· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Any other

·5· ·follow-up questions, Dr. Von Feldmann?

·6· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· Postcoagulation

·7· ·necrosis always means transmural burn.· That means a

·8· ·defect which is all the way through the wall of the colon

·9· ·to the serosa, and that causes a local peritonitis.· So I

10· ·would like to ask Dr. Shih whether he thinks that the

11· ·tear described by the surgeon was of significance.

12· · · · · A· · Yes, it is.· And you're correct that

13· ·postcoagulation syndrome means inflammation that's

14· ·transmural but with an exception of no free air.· Once

15· ·you have free air, it is a perforation.· That is the

16· ·definition.· That is a distinction between a perforation

17· ·and a post polypectomy coagulation syndrome.· I cannot be

18· ·any more clear than that.

19· · · · · Q· · So but my question was:· Do you think that

20· ·the tear described on the outside of the ascending colon

21· ·described by the surgeon was of significance?

22· · · · · A· · Yes.

23· · · · · Q· · In what sense?

24· · · · · A· · The surgeon goes in, he sees the outside of
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·1· ·the colon.· The outside of the colon is represented by

·2· ·the serosa.· He saw a nine-centimeter tear on the

·3· ·outside.· That's what he saw.· And therefore, it's

·4· ·significant.· He reports what he saw which is a tear.  A

·5· ·tear is a perforation on the outside.· And on the inside,

·6· ·there is a transmural defect by the pathologist.· So

·7· ·inside, there's a transmural defect; outside there's a

·8· ·tear.· And what connect -- it's so obvious.

·9· · · · · Q· · Now why did the surgeon not describe how deep

10· ·that tear was?

11· · · · · A· · It's not the surgeon's job to describe the

12· ·tear because he operates, he sees things on the outside.

13· ·He does not look inside until he takes out the specimen.

14· ·And on the outside, there is a nine-centimeter tear that

15· ·the patient -- that the surgeon saw.

16· · · · · Q· · So you believe that the nine-centimeter tear

17· ·was a perforation?

18· · · · · A· · Yes, in this situation where there is a free

19· ·-- large amount of free air as well as a transmural

20· ·defect described by the path ologist.· You have to take

21· ·everything in the appropriate context.· In this clinical

22· ·context, it is the logical conclusion that there is a

23· ·tear.· The reason that nobody did a gastrografin enema is

24· ·that is not indicated.· Nobody would do this.· This ER
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·1· ·called the surgeon right away.· The surgeon even in his

·2· ·notes says:· No additional imaging is necessary.· There's

·3· ·a tear.

·4· · · · · Q· · A nine-centimeter tear in the ascending colon

·5· ·in an area where I didn't work with any instrument can be

·6· ·very superficial due to pressure inside of the colon, and

·7· ·it's very unusual that we would be aware, become aware of

·8· ·a tear on the serosa side of the colon because we usually

·9· ·don't look there.· I believe that the tear described by

10· ·the surgeon was very superficial like the tears on the

11· ·inside of the colon which we call catscratch colon.

12· ·These are linear.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I object.· There's no question

14· ·there.

15· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Let him finish.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· These are longitudinal

18· ·tears just like it was described on the outside of the

19· ·colon, and they have to do with pressure on the inside of

20· ·the colon.

21· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Are you asking Dr.

22· ·Shih if he agrees with that or not?· Because you have to

23· ·ask a question.

24· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· No, I just wanted to
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·1· ·explain.

·2· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So the

·3· ·reason -- the basis for the objection is that you don't

·4· ·get to explain.· You only get to ask questions.· So if

·5· ·you want to explain something, you could do it in your

·6· ·closing argument.· So I let you finish because I didn't

·7· ·know if you were going to present that and then ask Dr.

·8· ·Shih if he agreed with that or not.

·9· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I wanted to say that the

10· ·catscratch colon has nothing to do with taking biopsies

11· ·or removing polyps.

12· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.

13· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· And was just due to

14· ·barotrauma.

15· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So you can

16· ·say that in closing, but if you want to present that now,

17· ·then the proper way is to ask if Dr. Shih agrees with

18· ·that or not.

19· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· Do you agree with

20· ·that?· Catscratch is barotrauma and consists of

21· ·longitudinal sometimes quite long erosions on the inside

22· ·of the colon usually in the ascending colon that can be

23· ·nine centimeters long?

24· · · · · A· · My reply is that I do not know what the
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·1· ·catscratch is because I do not use this term.· But in

·2· ·this situation, if there's a tear on the serosal side on

·3· ·the outside and there's free air, then there's a

·4· ·perforation.· That I completely stand by.· There is a

·5· ·perforation documented by the CT scan of free air

·6· ·documented by the surgeon saying there's a tear on the

·7· ·serosal side which is the outside and by the

·8· ·pathologist's stating there's a transmural defect.

·9· · · · · · · ·Whatever superficial thing that occurred on

10· ·the inside of the colon of the luminal side would not

11· ·cause a nine-centimeter tear on the serosal side.· That

12· ·does not happen.

13· · · · · Q· · Don't you think that the perforation which is

14· ·nine centimeters long would have allowed the contents on

15· ·the inside of the colon to escape through such a long

16· ·tear?

17· · · · · A· · I believe your question was addressed

18· ·earlier.· The patient has not eaten anything other than

19· ·two small crackers.· There's no input into the bowel.

20· ·Therefore, there's nothing to extravasate.

21· · · · · · · ·Additionally, your colonoscopy report says

22· ·that the bowel prep was adequate.· Not much feces.

23· ·Therefore, there's nothing to extravasate.· Therefore,

24· ·there's nothing to -- you cannot expel something if it's
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·1· ·not there.· That's just as simple as I can explain it.

·2· · · · · Q· · The pathology report describes there's plenty

·3· ·of fecal matter on the right side of the colon plus air.

·4· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Do you agree with

·5· ·that, Dr. Shih?

·6· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I mean, Dr. Von Feldmann, I

·7· ·mean the pathologist stated that.· And by saying that,

·8· ·you agree there is a perforation that the pathologist

·9· ·says there's a perforation.· Otherwise, why would feces

10· ·be spilled everywhere in the abdomen?

11· · · · · · · ·So earlier, you asked me why the surgeon

12· ·didn't see the feces because there's nothing to

13· ·extravasate.· But if the pathologist saw under the

14· ·microscope that there's feces, then I really think you're

15· ·doing yourself a disservice by pointing that out

16· ·indicating there is a perforation with leakage

17· ·extravasation of the feces outside.

18· · · · · · · ·What the pathologist said was the feces on

19· ·the outside again indicates there's a tear.· Otherwise,

20· ·it wouldn't be feces on the outside.· I completely agree

21· ·with your statement that the pathologist said there's

22· ·feces on the outside, and that indicates a tear.

23· · · · · Q· · Does the pathologist anywhere mention the

24· ·tear in the ascending colon on the microscopic
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·1· ·description or histology that there was any transmural

·2· ·defect in the area --

·3· · · · · A· · Yes.

·4· · · · · Q· · -- of the nine-centimeter tear?· He doesn't

·5· ·even describe the tear.

·6· · · · · A· · If you're finished, the pathologist did

·7· ·document grossly there is a transmural defect one

·8· ·centimeter away from the IC valve.· That's the ascending

·9· ·colon.· Microscopically under histology, there's also a

10· ·transmural defect in that area.· Transmural defect means

11· ·a tear in the appropriate clinical setting such as this

12· ·one.

13· · · · · Q· · One centimeter from the ileocecal valve also

14· ·could mean polypectomy site in the cecum.· And he only

15· ·describes a transmural defect in the area of the

16· ·polypectomies and not anywhere else in the ascending

17· ·colon and certainly not for the length of nine

18· ·centimeter.

19· · · · · · · ·I believe that the tear on the outside of the

20· ·colon which was described only by the surgeon was due to

21· ·barotrauma, and it was just the same as in catscratch

22· ·colons on the inside of the ascending colon.· These tears

23· ·are superficial and there was no evidence of transmural

24· ·and the pathologist --
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·1· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· I don't

·2· ·mean to interrupt, but remember you have to ask a

·3· ·question.· You can't testify at this point.· So you can

·4· ·present a hypothetical and ask Dr. Shih if he agrees.· So

·5· ·if that's what you believe happened, you need to say

·6· ·hypothetically, if this happened, would you agree with

·7· ·the hypothetical result that would apply to these facts?

·8· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.

·9· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· So based on what

10· ·you said, Dr. Shih, you understand what he just

11· ·expressed?

12· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

13· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· And do you agree

14· ·with what he's expressed so far?

15· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I do not.

16· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So he

17· ·doesn't agree with you.· So you can ask him why?

18· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· So my question to you

19· ·is:· On the pathology report, is it not mentioned that

20· ·there was plenty of fecal matter in the cecum and on the

21· ·right side of the colon.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'd like to lodge another

23· ·objection.

24· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.
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·1· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Go ahead.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· This has already been asked at

·3· ·least three times before.· It's already been answered by

·4· ·Dr. Shih at least three times before.· It's repetitive at

·5· ·this point.

·6· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· But I have to ask him

·7· ·again if there's plenty of fecal matter in the pathology

·8· ·specimen, so why did that not leave the colon through a

·9· ·nine-centimeter perforation?

10· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Maybe I can

11· ·clarify for purposes of the record for my own benefit so

12· ·that maybe we can move past this and I can understand

13· ·what Dr. Von Feldmann is trying to get at.

14· · · · · · · ·I hear Dr. Shih saying there was nothing to

15· ·pass through because he was cleared for the colonoscopy.

16· ·The fact that there was fecal matter on the outside of

17· ·where the perforation was shows that whatever fecal

18· ·matter remained did pass through.

19· · · · · · · ·What I hear you saying is that there was

20· ·sufficient fecal matter that it would have leaked through

21· ·more than just showing maybe a minute amount on the

22· ·outside of the perforation.· I don't know that you guys

23· ·are in agreement about the amount of fecal matter it

24· ·would have taken to show up on the pathology report if
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·1· ·that was a slight amount.

·2· · · · · · · ·I'm understanding that you're saying is that

·3· ·you believe that to be interpreted that there was a large

·4· ·amount, and if there was a large amount, it would have

·5· ·leaked through and not been a small amount outside of the

·6· ·perforation.

·7· · · · · · · ·Did I state that correctly, Dr. Shih, from

·8· ·your perspective?

·9· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I think any feces on the

10· ·outside in the abdominal wall, it's a perforation

11· ·whether it's a small amount or a large amount.

12· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· And did I state

13· ·that correctly from your perspective --

14· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· No.

15· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· -- that there

16· ·should have been more?

17· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· No.· The surgeon described

18· ·that there was no spillage, so the fecal matter was

19· ·inside of the colon.

20· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· But I think

21· ·this has been asked and answered.· And with that

22· ·clarification, I would ask that we move on unless there's

23· ·another question separate from that one that you have in

24· ·that regard.
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·1· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· No.· Do you agree

·2· ·that the pathologist described the transmural defect only

·3· ·in the areas of the polypectomies?· Or did he describe a

·4· ·transmural defect in the ascending colon distal to the

·5· ·polypectomy site where the surgeon described the long

·6· ·tear?· Did the pathologist describe any tear there?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· That's compound.

·8· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I believe I answered that

·9· ·already.· The pathologist described a transmural defect.

10· ·To me, that means a tear.

11· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Were you asking

12· ·about the location of the tear in comparison to where you

13· ·undertook your procedures?

14· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· Did the pathologist

15· ·describe a transmural defect in any other area of the

16· ·colon other than where the polypectomies were performed?

17· · · · · A· · So the surgical specimen is a right

18· ·hemicolectomy meaning that the cecum and the ascending

19· ·colon is removed.· The transmural defect is in that area.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'd like to --

21· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· And that is the area where you

22· ·performed endoscopic mucosal resection and hot biopsy.

23· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Did you have an

24· ·objection or something you wanted to say?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Not at this time.· No.

·2· · · · · Q· · (BY DR. VON FELDMANN:)· So you believe that

·3· ·the tear was significant?

·4· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· He's asked and

·5· ·answered that several times.

·6· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· But I want him to state it

·7· ·again.

·8· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Well, we don't do

·9· ·that because -- well, we just don't allow that.· We don't

10· ·have the same questions to be asked over and over.

11· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Okay.

12· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· It's for

13· ·procedural reasons so that we don't drag things out.· Do

14· ·you have any other questions for Dr. Shih that you

15· ·haven't already asked?

16· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· No, I don't think so.

17· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Reply?

18

19· · · · · · · · · · · ·FURTHER EXAMINATION

20· ·BY MR. CUMINGS:

21· · · · · Q· · Dr. Shih, is there any amount of fecal matter

22· ·located outside the serosa that would normally be present

23· ·absent a perforation in any normal circumstance?

24· · · · · A· · No.· If there's feces on the outside, then
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·1· ·there's a perforation.

·2· · · · · Q· · What occurs if there's feces in that area?

·3· · · · · A· · Then that means there's a perforation.

·4· · · · · Q· · Would there be signs of an infection at that

·5· ·point?

·6· · · · · A· · Yes, there will be signs of infection, and as

·7· ·in this case, there's a .5 centimeter abscess.· This is

·8· ·an infection.

·9· · · · · Q· · So a highly abnormal situation, you would

10· ·agree?

11· · · · · A· · Not highly.· It is abnormal.

12· · · · · Q· · And for there to be in that area as described

13· ·by the pathologist what is it, one centimeter from the

14· ·ileocecal valve?· That's where Dr. Von Feldmann was

15· ·operating?

16· · · · · A· · That's the best that I can piece together.

17· ·He removed polyp in the cecum and the ascending colon.

18· ·That piece is taken out by the surgeon and the defect is

19· ·in that piece.

20· · · · · Q· · And the amount of fecal matter observed by

21· ·the pathologist was done so likely under a microscope?

22· · · · · A· · I'm not a pathologist, but I would assume

23· ·that's what they do.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Okay.· Thank you, Dr. Shih.  I
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·1· ·have no further questions.

·2· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Is that the end of

·3· ·your rebuttal case?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So that is

·6· ·the close.

·7· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· May I be excused?· Sorry.· May

·8· ·I be excused?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Yes.

10· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Yes.· You're being

11· ·excused by Mr. Cumings.· Thank you for coming today, Dr.

12· ·Shih.· I'm sure it's appreciated.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Thank you very much, Dr. Shih.

14· · · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Thank you.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· I just leave the

16· ·notebook here, okay?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· That's fine, Dr. Shih.· Thank

18· ·you.

19· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· So if you'd

20· ·like, we can take a break.· Otherwise, we're going to

21· ·move on to closing arguments.

22· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Move on.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'm ready to deliver closing

24· ·arguments.
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·1· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· All right.· And I

·2· ·just want to remind you both that I'm a lawyer not a

·3· ·doctor, so let's make this pretty basic for me.· Okay?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Do my best.

·5· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· All right.· Thank

·6· ·you.

·7· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· If you have any questions

·8· ·for me to explain to you, I will be glad to do that.

·9· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Well, I

10· ·don't have any questions at this time.· I just want to

11· ·make sure that when you're doing your closing, you close

12· ·as though you're talking to someone who is not a doctor

13· ·so that I make sure that I follow what you're saying.

14· ·I've got a good handle on it, I think, but just I want to

15· ·make sure I have a great handle on it.

16· · · · · · · ·Go ahead, Mr. Cumings.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· On behalf of the Investigative

18· ·Committee, we'd like to thank you, Officer Halstead, for

19· ·your time and you as well Madame Court Reporter and Dr.

20· ·Shih, and I'd also like to thank you, Von Feldmann, for

21· ·coming today and defending your case.

22· · · · · · · ·As I mentioned in my opening statement, we

23· ·are here today to present evidence so that the Board can

24· ·determine whether Dr. Von Feldmann violated the Medical
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·1· ·Practice Act.

·2· · · · · · · ·You heard testimony from Dr. Shih, the Nevada

·3· ·State Board of Medical Examiners' expert in this case,

·4· ·about the care provided by Dr. Von Feldmann.· Dr. Von

·5· ·Feldmann failed to consider the possibility of a colon

·6· ·perforation following Patient A's complaint of pain.

·7· ·Additionally, you heard testimony from Dr. Von Feldmann

·8· ·that he failed to obtain immediate imaging following

·9· ·Patient A's complaint of pain which occurred the night of

10· ·June 20th, 2018, by way of the patient's wife.

11· · · · · · · ·There was a documented -- a nine-centimeter

12· ·documented serosal tear by multiple physicians including

13· ·the reading radiologist that read the CT report from

14· ·Mount Grant, Dr. Ventura, the ER physician, the operating

15· ·physician and the pathologist.

16· · · · · · · ·Dr. Von Feldmann failed to recognize that

17· ·free air in the patient's abdomen was likely due to colon

18· ·perforation which required an immediate intervention.

19· ·Specifically, with regards to Count 1, Dr. Von Feldmann

20· ·admitted that he did not refer the patient to a surgical

21· ·consult or obtain imaging following the patient's

22· ·complaints of pain.

23· · · · · · · ·In sum, the testimony presented today is

24· ·established by a preponderance of the evidence that
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·1· ·Dietrich Von Feldmann has committed malpractice as

·2· ·defined in NAC 630.040 which is a failure to use the

·3· ·reasonable care --

·4· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Slow down for the

·5· ·court reporter.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I'm sorry.· Which is a failure

·7· ·to use reasonable care, skill or knowledge ordinarily

·8· ·used under similar circumstances as alleged in Count 1 by

·9· ·the Nevada Medical Board.· The exhibits admitted here

10· ·today along with the testimony given at this hearing

11· ·support the allegation of malpractice.

12· · · · · · · ·On behalf of the Investigative Committee, we

13· ·ask the Board and the Hearing Officer to consider the

14· ·record that was presented here today and render the

15· ·appropriate findings and discipline.· Thank you very

16· ·much.

17· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Your turn, Dr. Von

18· ·Feldmann, to go ahead and it's called a closing argument,

19· ·so you get to wrap up the testimony from your perspective

20· ·and why you think that I should rule in your favor.

21· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· First of all, I do not

22· ·believe that I committed malpractice.· Then I would like

23· ·to come back to this tear which was only described by the

24· ·surgeon and by no nobody else.· It was not seen on CT
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·1· ·scan.· Dr. Ventura didn't see it.· The pathologist didn't

·2· ·describe it.

·3· · · · · · · ·I believe that this tear was totally

·4· ·insignificant and it was not a perforation and that was

·5· ·not the area where the air escaped.· The air escaped

·6· ·through the areas of postcoagulation necrosis syndrome,

·7· ·and in the area of -- in these areas, the pathologist did

·8· ·not describe any perforation.· I believe that the air

·9· ·escaped from the inside of the colon through

10· ·microperforation.

11· · · · · · · ·And as I stated before, microperforation can

12· ·be very small perforations.· And the air, when there is

13· ·enough pressure, can escape through these

14· ·microperforations during the procedure and then probably

15· ·close very soon after the procedure, but the air stays in

16· ·the abdominal cavity because the air is not absorbed that

17· ·fast like C02 is.

18· · · · · · · ·But as I said, we didn't have C02 at Mount

19· ·Grant General Hospital at that time to use for

20· ·colonoscopy.· We always use it nowadays everywhere.· But

21· ·as I also stated before, the patient would have had more

22· ·pain because the C02 is very, very irritating to the

23· ·peritoneum.· So I did not understand Dr. Shih, what he

24· ·was talking about the tears.· There was no tear anywhere.
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·1· ·There was just a microperforation.· Otherwise, the

·2· ·pathology report would have described it.· The pathology

·3· ·report didn't even describe the tear which the surgeon

·4· ·saw.· So if that would have been a perforation in the

·5· ·area of the long tear, there would have been inflammatory

·6· ·changes in the area which was not described by the

·7· ·pathologist.

·8· · · · · · · ·And if somebody has a tear of nine

·9· ·centimeters perforation of nine centimeters, this is a

10· ·giant perforation.· And I've never heard of a giant

11· ·perforation like that after a colonoscopy.· This is just

12· ·due to barotrauma that could occur quite often.· We don't

13· ·know because we don't look at the outside of the colon

14· ·during the colonoscopy.· It's only seen at the time of

15· ·surgery or on pathology specimen.

16· · · · · · · ·So the postcoagulation necrosis syndrome

17· ·always means that there is a transmural necrosis from the

18· ·mucosa which is the inside of the colon respectively from

19· ·the base of the polypectomy to the outside of the colon

20· ·which is called visceral peritoneum of serosa.

21· · · · · · · ·So in my book, the air leaked through the

22· ·postcoagulation necrosis where the patient had, in my

23· ·book, microperforations which closed within a very short

24· ·time after the procedure due to blood or other fluids or
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·1· ·white blood cells.· That's why I believe that the

·2· ·gastrografin enema would not have shown any extravasation

·3· ·of the contrast material.· That's why I believe that the

·4· ·pain the patient complained of at probably intermittently

·5· ·was due to the air collected in the right side in the

·6· ·right upper quadrant of the abdomen which also caused the

·7· ·pain in the patient's shoulder.

·8· · · · · · · ·And the pain which the patient apparently

·9· ·also pointed out at one time at least, according to the

10· ·records, that he had pain in the right lower quadrant of

11· ·the abdomen.· And that was certainly due to the

12· ·postcoagulation necrosis syndrome.· Postcoagulation

13· ·necrosis syndrome causes the same symptoms as a

14· ·perforation.

15· · · · · · · ·If I would have had any more suspicion of a

16· ·perforation, I would have ordered a CT scan or if I would

17· ·have seen anything through the scope which suggested that

18· ·there could have been a perforation, we would have closed

19· ·the polypectomy site with clips.

20· · · · · · · ·I believe you could think inside of the box

21· ·which surgeons usually do.· That means pain after a

22· ·procedure and free air, surgery.· That's the way it goes.

23· ·That's why I didn't want the patient to go to a surgeon

24· ·right away without additional workup or you can think
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·1· ·outside of the box which you have to do in the case like

·2· ·this and not send the patient to surgery.

·3· · · · · · · ·In my book, this patient would not have gone

·4· ·to surgery.· This patient would not have stayed in the

·5· ·hospital for nine days.· The patient, like the other

·6· ·patient which I described before, went home

·7· ·asymptomatically after three days with free air in the

·8· ·abdomen and pain, so it was a similar situation.

·9· · · · · · · ·Reading through Dr. Shih's curriculum vitae,

10· ·which is enormous, I don't find -- I don't see how he

11· ·finds the time to do 12,000 colonoscopies all by himself.

12· ·There is not a single time in his extensive abstracts or

13· ·book chapters or whatever, there is not a single mention

14· ·of colonoscopy, polypectomy, postcoagulation necrosis

15· ·syndrome, free air in the diagram or in the abdominal

16· ·cavity or paracentesis for free air in the abdominal

17· ·cavity to relieve the patient's pain.· I believe that the

18· ·patient's pain was due to the air mainly.· That's why he

19· ·had pain in the shoulder because the air was in the area

20· ·of the right upper quadrant.· It's like having a

21· ·gallbladder attack very often leads to pain in the

22· ·shoulder.

23· · · · · · · ·The abscess which was described by the

24· ·pathologist was very small.· The abscess -- I don't know
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·1· ·what he meant by an abscess.· It could be just an

·2· ·accumulation of white blood cells which would be an

·3· ·abscess.· And we know that anybody who has

·4· ·postcoagulation necrosis has inflammation of the wall of

·5· ·the colon and also of the serosal side of the colon which

·6· ·is called localized peritonitis.· So that's very similar

·7· ·to having for somebody who has diverticulosis, which is

·8· ·in the western world, usually on the left side.· If that

·9· ·person develops diverticulitis, which is in my book

10· ·fairly rare, this is caused -- by the literature also --

11· ·by microperforation of the diverticulum because the

12· ·diverticulum has a very thin wall which does not have

13· ·what the rest of the intestines has muscle.· It has only

14· ·the inside of the colon which is called mucosa and the

15· ·submucosa which is in between the musculature of the

16· ·colon wall and the mucosa.· So and that's missing in the

17· ·diverticulum, and that makes the wall very thin.· And the

18· ·wall of the cecum is in anybody the thinnest part of the

19· ·colon.· And particularly, it's one to three millimeters

20· ·when it's not distended by air.· And when you do

21· ·polypectomy, then it's even thinner because we remove the

22· ·mucosa and the submucosa.

23· · · · · · · ·And in very many cases of EMR, which stands

24· ·for endoscopic mucosal resection, we burn -- we have to
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·1· ·burn into the muscularis of the colon, and sometimes it

·2· ·goes all the way through the serosa.· I've seen quite a

·3· ·few of those, and they were all treated conservatively.

·4· · · · · · · ·And I've seen plenty of patients with

·5· ·catscratch colon.· Catscratch colon is just due to

·6· ·barotrauma, and it consists of linear erosions in the

·7· ·ascending colon.· And if it occurs on the inside of the

·8· ·colon, it also can occur on the outside of the colon

·9· ·without any consequences.

10· · · · · · · ·And I think that that tear of nine centimeter

11· ·which the surgeon described was totally insignificant and

12· ·not a perforation.· And I believe that through a

13· ·nine-centimeter perforation, there would be plenty of

14· ·spillage into the peritoneal cavity which was not

15· ·described by the surgeon.· And there was plenty of liquid

16· ·stuff inside of the colon in the area where the patient

17· ·had the microperforation.

18· · · · · · · ·Microperforation means very small and nothing

19· ·can get through there.· That's why I wanted to have a

20· ·gastrografin enema.· The gastrografin would not have been

21· ·showing any spillage of the contrast into the peritoneal

22· ·cavity.· That would have spoken against significant

23· ·perforation, but air can leak through the tiniest holes

24· ·which closes immediately.
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·1· · · · · · · ·So I don't think that Dr. Shih is an expert

·2· ·in therapeutic colonoscopy because he has -- his interest

·3· ·is not in colonoscopies.· His interests is in

·4· ·inflammatory bowel disease like Crohn's disease or

·5· ·ulcerative colitis and in immunology and genetics.

·6· ·That's what all his references are about.

·7· · · · · · · ·If he was an expert in therapeutic

·8· ·colonoscopy, he would have written about that.· And I

·9· ·don't even understand how he can find the time for 12,000

10· ·colonoscopies with all of this research work he did in

11· ·the lab, etcetera.· He must be extremely busy with

12· ·getting all of these references together.

13· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Anything else

14· ·you'd like to add?

15· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· No, I don't.· There's

16· ·probably something I could add, but I don't know of

17· ·anything right now.

18· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I just want to reiterate

20· ·that I would have done everything the same way if I would

21· ·have a case like that again.

22· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Thank you

23· ·so much for explaining that to me very clearly and

24· ·articulately.· I appreciate that.
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·1· · · · · · · ·Did you have any reply argument you wanted to

·2· ·present?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· I think that it was addressed

·4· ·several times that there was fecal material outside of

·5· ·where the alleged tear was.· Dr. Von Feldmann said as

·6· ·much.· I think Dr. Shih spoke on that very extensively

·7· ·that if there's fecal material there, there's a tear.

·8· · · · · · · ·Regardless of that, the crux of the case

·9· ·should be whether a CT should have been ordered that

10· ·night, and a CT wasn't ordered when the patient

11· ·complained of new and worsening pain, and that should

12· ·have been at the very minimum that was done, so I believe

13· ·that's the conclusion of everything I had to present.

14· ·Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Thank you both.

16· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· So can I add something?

17· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Normally, you

18· ·wouldn't, but I will give you the chance to do so

19· ·briefly.

20· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· There was, according to

21· ·the surgeon, no spillage.

22· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Yes, I recall you

23· ·saying that.· Okay.· Thank you, everyone.

24· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· To go over something else,
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·1· ·I want to say why I did not order a CT scan when the wife

·2· ·called me because I was convinced in my vast experience

·3· ·that there was no perforation, that there was just

·4· ·postcoagulation necrosis syndrome that would not have

·5· ·shown up on CT scan.

·6· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Thank you

·7· ·both.· I appreciate everything that's been presented

·8· ·today.· I'm going to take this under submission, and the

·9· ·court reporter is going to give me a copy of the

10· ·transcript from today, and then I have 60 days to draft a

11· ·recommendation to the --

12· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· How many days?

13· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Sixty days.  I

14· ·know it's a long time to wait.· I will do it sooner if

15· ·possible.· I usually don't get to do it sooner because

16· ·I'm busy, but I know that everyone waits for these

17· ·things.

18· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· Would it help you if I

19· ·would try to print out some references from the

20· ·literature?· I couldn't do that.

21· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· No, we don't do

22· ·that anymore.· Right now, the case has been presented and

23· ·all I can consider is what we talked about here today.

24· · · · · · · ·DR. VON FELDMANN:· I couldn't print out
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·1· ·anything because a few months ago, I closed my office and

·2· ·I don't have the equipment at home.

·3· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Right.  I

·4· ·understand, but thank you for your time today, and we

·5· ·certainly appreciate you being here and the explanations

·6· ·you've provided.

·7· · · · · · · ·Anything else before we go off the record?

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· (Indicating.)

·9· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER HALSTEAD:· Okay.· Then I will

10· ·not talk to you about the merits of this matter any

11· ·further from here, and I appreciate everyone's time

12· ·today.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. CUMINGS:· Thank you very much for showing

14· ·up today, Dr. Von Feldmann.

15· · · · · · · ·(The hearing concluded at 11:37 a.m.)

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·-o0o-
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·1· ·STATE OF NEVADA· )
· · ·COUNTY OF WASHOE )
·2

·3

·4· · · · · · I, Nicole J. Hansen, Certified Court Reporter,

·5· ·State of Nevada, do hereby certify:

·6· · · · · · That prior to being examined, the witness in the

·7· ·foregoing proceedings was by me duly sworn to testify to

·8· ·the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth;

·9· · · · · · That said proceedings were taken before me at

10· ·the time and places therein set forth and were taken down

11· ·by me in shorthand and thereafter transcribed into

12· ·typewriting under my direction and supervision;

13· · · · · · I further certify that I am neither counsel for,

14· ·nor related to, any party to said proceedings, not in

15· ·anywise interested in the outcome thereof.

16· · · · · · ·In witness whereof, I have hereunto subscribed

17· ·my name.

18

19· ·Dated:· August 19, 2022

20

21

22· ·Nicole J. Hansen

23· ·NV. CSR No. 446, RPR, CRR, RMR

24· ·CA. CSR 13,909
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·1· · · HEALTH INFORMATION PRIVACY & SECURITY: CAUTIONARY NOTICE

·2· Litigation Services is committed to compliance with applicable federal

·3· and state laws and regulations (“Privacy Laws”) governing the

·4· protection andsecurity of patient health information.Notice is

·5· herebygiven to all parties that transcripts of depositions and legal

·6· proceedings, and transcript exhibits, may contain patient health

·7· information that is protected from unauthorized access, use and

·8· disclosure by Privacy Laws. Litigation Services requires that access,

·9· maintenance, use, and disclosure (including but not limited to

10· electronic database maintenance and access, storage, distribution/

11· dissemination and communication) of transcripts/exhibits containing

12· patient information be performed in compliance with Privacy Laws.

13· No transcript or exhibit containing protected patient health

14· information may be further disclosed except as permitted by Privacy

15· Laws. Litigation Services expects that all parties, parties’

16· attorneys, and their HIPAA Business Associates and Subcontractors will

17· make every reasonable effort to protect and secure patient health

18· information, and to comply with applicable Privacy Law mandates,

19· including but not limited to restrictions on access, storage, use, and

20· disclosure (sharing) of transcripts and transcript exhibits, and

21· applying “minimum necessary” standards where appropriate. It is

22 recommended that your office review its policies regarding sharing of

23 transcripts and exhibits - including access, storage, use, and

24· disclosure - for compliance with Privacy Laws.

25· · · · © All Rights Reserved. Litigation Services (rev. 6/1/2019)
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 Dr. Von Feldmann is expected to testify as to his actions as outlined in the formal 

Complaint. 

c. David Shih, M.D. 
c/o Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners 
9600 Gateway Drive 
Reno, NV 89521 

Dr. Shih is expected to testify about his review of this case, the standard of care applicable 

to this matter and his professional opinion(s) concerning the care, treatment and record keeping of 

Patient A by Respondent. 

d. All witnesses identified by Respondent in his prehearing conference statement 

and/or in any subsequent amended, revised or supplemental prehearing conference statement, or 

list of witnesses disclosed by Respondent of persons he may call to testify at the hearing herein. 

II. LIST OF EXHIBITS 

The Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners lists the 

following exhibits that it may introduce at the hearing on the charges and formal Complaint 

against the Respondent. 

EXHIBIT 
NO. 

DESCRIPTION BATES 
RANGE 

(NSBME) 

1 
NSBME Formal Complaint,  
(Dated 3/1/2022) 

001 - 005 

2 
Proof of Service (Formal Complaint),  
(Dated 3/3/2022)  

006 - 010 

3 
Order Scheduling Early Case Conference, 
(Dated 3/28/2022) 

011 - 015 

4 
Proof of Service (Order Scheduling Early Case 
Conference), (Dated 3/31/22) 

016 - 018 

5 
Formal Hearing Scheduling Order,  
(Dated 4/14/2022) 

019 - 022 
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EXHIBIT 
NO. 

DESCRIPTION BATES 
RANGE 

(NSBME) 

6 
Proof of Service (Formal Hearing Scheduling Order), 
(Dated 4/25/2022) 

023 - 027 

7 
Order Vacating Scheduling Order and Setting Status 
Conference, (Dated 6/3/22) 

028 - 030 

8 
Notice of Withdrawal of Counsel,  
(Dated 6/22/2022) 

031 

9 Amended Scheduling Order, (Dated 6/27/2022) 
032 - 035 

10 
Proof of Service (Amended Scheduling Order), (Dated 
7/6/2022) 

036 - 040 

11 
NSBME Allegation Letter, Patient A,  
(Dated 10/16/2018) 

041 - 042 

12 

Order To Produce Medical Records Patient A, Dietrich 
Von Feldmann, M.D., Patient A,  
(Dated 10/16/2018) 
  

043 - 044 

13 Patient A Medical Records, Dietrich Von Feldmann, M.D. 
045 - 066 

14 
Letter To Juanchichos Ventura, M.D., Request For Patient 
A Medical Records, (Dated 10/16/2018) 

067 

15 
Response From Juanchichos Ventura, M.D., Request For 
Patient A Medical Records  

068 

16 Patient A Medical Records, Rural Health Clinic 
069 - 082  

17 Medical Records from Renown Medical Center 
083 – 503 

18 Curriculum Vitae of David Shih, M.D. 
504 - 524 
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